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Five-Year Financial Summary

7 N 0B
AFEHE
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME G EWER
STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
2023 & 2022 4 20214 20204 20194
ARETT ARETIT ARETT ARETIT ARETIT
Revenue & 317,353 134,155 165,942 198,478 203,443
Cost of sales $HE AR AR (293,507) (137,966)  (126,748)  (124,621)  (136,539)
Gross profit/(loss) EF,(48) 23,846 (3,811) 39,194 73,857 66,904
(Loss)/Profit before income tax 4 P15 %4 Al
(B18) /& F (8,665) (8,773) 24,080 52,593 49,075
(Loss)/Profit for the year KANBHEE AEIRE
attributable to owners of the R (EBE) /& F)
Company (10,091) (8,937) 21,182 43,821 41,851

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT LR 3O
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December
®12A31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F 20214 20204 2019
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARTT

Total assets BERE 492,175 354,943 380,215 300,020 234,423
Total liabilities BERE (176,291) (29,045) (45,509) (77,069) (55,155)
Total equity Tz B 315,884 325,898 334,706 222,951 179,268

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated it E W MEKLEZIRE M BHREH—H -
financial statements.

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Star Shine Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Deyun
Holding Ltd.) (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) (and each being “we"”, “us” or “our Group” for the
purposes of this annual report as appropriate) for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BEMBRR :

7K A # L & Star Shine Holdings Group Limited (&
EEREBBERAR) (AEEEERAERAE )
(28D E(EE) g ((EEE)])  MA
M BETREARFREMBAR (5B AEH])
(BARFHME - SERIRMAIKITEE] (HER))
BZE2023FN2ANBLEFE (HREH[)) OF
ﬁﬁ °

TEVBHRHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2023 2022

(Audited) (Audited)

2023 F 20224

(BER) (fe&%)

Revenue (RMB'000) W (AREFIT) 317,353 134,155

Gross profit/(loss) (RMB’000) EA (B (ARETF T 23,846 (3,811)

Loss before income tax (RMB’000) BREFSHAIEE (AR T T) (8,665) (8,773)
Loss for the year attributable to owners RATRHEB ANEEEAEE

of the Company (RMB’000) (AR®EFT) (10,091) (8,937)

Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE (AR D) (0.80) (0.71)

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a long-established lace manufacturer and dyeing service
provider. We are primarily engaged in manufacturing and sales
of lace to our customers to produce branded lingerie products on
order-by-order basis. For our dyeing services, our customers are
mainly lace and swim wear manufacturers who would provide us
with their own lace and swimwear fabrics to dye before further
fabrication. We are also engaged in footwear business, including
design, research and development, sourcing, merchandising,
quality control and sales of shoes. Revenue from footwear business
segment increased significantly during the Reporting Period, which
accounted for approximately 76.7% of the total revenue of the
Group (2022: approximately 38.2%).

*  For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

During the Reporting Period, the market economy remained
uncertain such as rate hikes, geopolitical tensions and weakening
consumer confidence. Although the Mainland China market has
reopened, the economic recovery and growth in Mainland China
have still fallen short of expectations due to various uncertainties.
The Group’s lace manufacturing and dyeing business inevitably
experienced a certain degree of impact from the market conditions.
However, the Group’s footwear business benefited from a new
customer, offsetting the decline in the lace manufacturing and
dyeing business.

We recorded revenue of approximately RMB317.4 million for
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately
136.6% from approximately RMB134.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Net loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB10.1 million was recorded for
the Reporting Period representing an increase of approximately
12.9% from approximately RMB8.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

OUTLOOK AND BUSINESS STRATEGY

In the medium to long term, with the increasing environmental
awareness and the determined implementation of “dual-carbon”
goals, it is foreseeable that more and more environmental
protection policies will be introduced. All of these factors raise
concerns about the prospects of our Group’s lace manufacturing
and dyeing business. In light of the explosive growth in the
footwear business, our Group will gradually reduce investment of
further resources in the lace manufacturing and dyeing business
and shift focus to the footwear business. The Group continues to
invest more resources in footwear business which aiming to match
with the fashion trend and market demand in order to strive for
more customers and orders. We believe that these actions will
enable us to reduce the risk of the Group and contribute positively
to our Group’s future earnings and consequentially improve the
financial position of our Group.

Going forward, we will adopt a prudent approach to run
our existing business operations and also actively identify
potential business opportunities that are in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders. We will continue to enhance our
production efficiency and reduce our operating cost; comply with
environmental protection policies; and strengthen our research and
development capability and quality control.

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our colleagues for
their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would also like to
thank all our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

By order of the Board

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R wm AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% [E] B8

N2

Revenue

The Group derives its revenue from (i) dyeing services; (i)  ZANE@AULES IR () RERE : () EBEENMIBEE
manufacturing and sales of lace; and (iii) footwear business. The & (iii) & /B 75 - E B EMFUWENREHRHABIEE -
revenue from footwear business maintains a significant growth in

the Reporting Period.

Revenue by product types HZE i B FI 2 7 1 K 7
Breakdown of the Group’s revenue by product types is as follows: REEZERERNE DO EBPEET

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

2023 2022
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
2023 £ 2022 F

ARBTF R tlE% ARETT 4z %

Dyeing RE 53,287 16.8 56,108 418
Lace g

— High density —-BERE 15,968 5.0 21,343 15.9

— Regular density —ERERE 4,722 1.5 5,419 4.1
Sub-total NEE 20,690 6.5 26,762 20.0
Footwear EHE 243,376 76.7 51,285 38.2
Total et 317,353 100.0 134,155 100.0
Revenue by operating geographical regions HEE IV E R 5w

Breakdown of the Group’s revenue by operating geographical —~ ZREBIZEEMIBLIE D MUERRMNT ¢
location is as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
2023 £ 2022 F

ARBT T tlE% ARETRT 14z %

Mainland China and Hong Kong W B i ) R 317,353 100.0 134,155 100.0

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023



Management Discussion and Analysis

EREIREAN

Dyeing

Market demand has been weakened because of the pandemic.
The industry’s recovery progress has been further hindered due
to the various uncertain factors mentioned earlier. In the face of
a sluggish market, competition has become more intense. The
Group's dyeing revenue decreased by approximately 5.0% from
approximately RMB56.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB53.3 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily attributable to the decrease in orders from customers.

Lace

The Group’s lace products are classified into (i) regular density
lace, and (i) high density lace. The lace revenue decreased by
approximately 22.7% from approximately RMB26.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB20.7 million
for the Reporting Period for the reasons mentioned above.

Footwear

The Group recorded revenue from footwear business of
approximately RMB243.4 million for the Reporting Period,
representing an increase of approximately 3.7 times from
approximately RMB51.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Gross profit/(loss) and gross profit/(loss)
margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB23.8
million for the Reporting Period as compared to the gross loss of
approximately RMB3.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primary attributable to (i) the decrease in sales of dyeing
services and (i) the considerable growth in footwear business.

Other income

Other income decreased by approximately 18.0% from
approximately RMB5.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB4.4 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily attributable to the decrease in the last phase of one-off
government grants in relation to the listing of the Company.

Other gains, net

Other gains, net for the Reporting Period of approximately RMB2.5
million decreased by approximately 41.1% from approximately
RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 mainly
represented exchange differences arising from translation of
the Group’s sales, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies.

RE

KERIBRE MBHEREER MEATNXRER
WERETAAEER  E—TITETENEFREE
AHFEINTE BFERBZ - AEER
BWHAET202FE1N2A3MBEEEHARE
56.1 BB LA #5.0% EREHMAHARKES33
BB FEZEHREPEIERD o

YCE:

AEEWCEERD AMALE BI() ERHEILE
FiyaEEXE AREMRRRA  EEREHE
EZ202F12R3MALEFENARK 2685 E T
WMAK227% ZREHBHOARE207EHE T »

g2E

AEBERBEHHEBSEREFRANARE
203 AB BT WEE2022F 128318 LFED
ARSI 3EETEMNL 3.7 -

ERN (B8 RER(EHB) X

REERREHEBEESENNARE238EBE T
MEZE2022F 12 A31HIEFEEISRBEBHA
R¥E38EET FE2HN () RAEBRBHIEE R
RiVEBEBHRBEER -

HAb A

HEMWABEZT202F12A3MBIEEEHAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREIREAN

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of packaging
expenses, commission and staff cost in relation to sales and
marketing staff. Selling and distribution expenses increased of
approximately 8.7 times from approximately RMB1.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB16.2 million
for the Reporting Period, which was in line with the increase in
revenue from footwear business.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consist of employment benefit
expenses, professional fee, utilities, and office expenses.
Administrative expenses increased by approximately 23.6% from
approximately RMB14.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB17.8 million for the Reporting Period
mainly due to the employment of more staff in Hong Kong and
Mainland China by the Group to manage its footwear business.

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment

The Group recorded an impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB7.4 million (2022: nil) for the
Reporting Period mainly due to (i) the deteriorating performance
of dyeing services and lace manufacturing and (i) current market
condition.

Finance income, net

Net finance income decreased from approximately RMB2.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB2.0
million for the Reporting Period, primarily attributable to the
increase in interest expenses on interest bearing borrowings.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREIREAN

Income tax expenses

Fujian Deyun Technology Co., Ltd.* (B EEZERE AR A
Al) (the “Deyun Technology”), which engaged in dyeing and
lace business of the Group, is recognised as a High and New
Technology Enterprise* (/& ¥7 £ fif 1 2%) and therefore entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December
2022 and for the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period,
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 8.25%
to 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits. The income tax
expense increased from approximately RMBO.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB1.4 million for
the Reporting Period, which was mainly due to the profit-making
position of the footwear business in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") for the Reporting Period.

Net loss for the year

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded a net loss
of approximately RMB10.1 million for the Reporting Period as
compared to the net loss of approximately RMB8.9 million for year
ended 31 December 2022.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
Reporting Period (2022: nil).

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

Net current assets

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB191.4
million as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately RMB181.7
million). The current ratio of the Group decreased from
approximately 7.7 times as at 31 December 2022 to approximately
2.1 times as at 31 December 2023. The increase in net current
assets and decrease of current ratio as at 31 December 2023
was primarily attributable to the overall impact on (i) the increase
of cash and cash equivalents; (ii) the increase in trade and bill
receivables; (iii) the increase in trade payables and (iv) the increase
in interest bearing borrowings.

*  For identitiation purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREIREAN

Cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and
pledge of assets

The Group funds its business and working capital requirements
by using a balanced mix of internal resources, borrowings and
funds from listing. The Group will adjust its mix of funding mix
depending on the costs of funding and its actual needs.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB269.0 million (2022: approximately RMB187.9
million) and they were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), United
States Dollar (“USD") and Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD").

At 31 December 2023, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB36.9 million (2022: nil).

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no undrawn
banking facilities.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
assets pledged as securities.

Gearing ratio

At 31 December 2023, the Group had a gearing ratio of 0.1 (2022:
nil), calculated by dividing total debt (including borrowings and
lease liabilities) by total equity.

Capital structure

At 31 December 2023, the Company’s issued share capital was
HKD 12,600,000 and the number of issued shares of the Company
was 1,260,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each.

Capital expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group incurred cash flows on capital
expenditures for the purchase of properties, plant and equipment
and intangible assets in the amount of approximately RMB1.5
million (2022: approximately RMB10.6 million).

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREIREAN

Foreign exchange risks and hedging

The majority of assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in RMB, USD and HKD, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional
currencies of the Group's entities. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not hedge its foreign currency exposure. The Group
regularly monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMBO0.2 million in relation to the purchase of
properties, plant and equipment (2022: approximately RMB0.4
million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's employees are generally remunerated by way of
fixed salary and they may also be entitled to a number of welfare
benefits, including but not limited to job-nature based subsidy,
performance-based bonus, paid leave and share options. The
Group also make contributions to mandatory social security
funds for its employees. The Group utilises an appraisal system
for its employees and considers the appraisal results of individual
employees when conducting their salary review and determining
the amount of bonuses. To enhance the performance of the
employees, the Group provides its employees with adequate and
regular trainings.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 527 employees (2022:
362 employees) and the Group’s total employee benefit expenses
(including Directors’ emoluments) for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB36.4 million (2022: approximately
RMB32.4 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREIREAN

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEME

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the PRC government (the “Retirement
Benefit Scheme"”). The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of basic payroll costs to the Retirement Benefit Scheme.

The Group joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules.

The Group's contributions to the Retirement Benefit Scheme and
the MPF Scheme (the “Defined Contribution Schemes”) vest
fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i) for
the Reporting Period, there was no forfeiture of contributions
under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and (ii) there were no
forfeited contributions available for the Group to reduce its existing
level of contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme at 31
December 2023. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the Defined
Contribution Scheme.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals during the
Reporting Period.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MAJOR INVESTMENT

During the Reporting Period, save for the expansion plans as
disclosed in the sections headed “Business” and “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 28
December 2020 (the “Prospectus”), the Group had no specific
plan for major investment or acquisition for major capital assets or
other businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI R

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC

OFFERING

Net proceeds from the initial public offering (the “IPO"), after
deducting underwriting commissions and other relevant expenses,
amounted to approximately HKD85.6 million. At 31 December

2023, the net proceeds from the IPO had been applied as follows:

BXAHABRERERERR

KRB HEAe REMBBASE  BAARE
E(ERAHBE) MBREFENASES
I M2023F 12 A31 8 BRARBEMEK
BFHEEETIAFABA

Net proceeds et proceeds Unused Timeframe
Planned  Unused net used for used at balance at for the
useof  proceedsat theReporting  31December 31 December unused
Planned use of net proceeds net proceeds 1 January 2023 Period 2023 2023 balance
2038 H203%
1A1A REHE 12A31H Ra3E
fERERE ABRAN  EBRAMRS B8R 128318 ABRLR
FEREFEZHERE I HERSE FERETE FEFE  FERETE  ABRLR HEEX
HKD million HKD millon HKD millon HKD million HKD million
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEAT
Expand dyeing service capacity and enhance ERA FARBEHEER 499 139 27 387 112 Byendof 2024
efficiency by way of upgrading, replacing and FHEREEREE AR Q0UFEF
acquiring machineries and faciities Rz
Strengthen research and development capabilty — MBLBRBHHEE N R 34 05 05 34 - NATER
and quality control for dyeing services RADEEH
Replace a coal-ourning-hoiler by a WRARBEE AR 136 5.7 - 79 57 Byendof 2024
natural-gas-boiler WUERH
Expand integrated enterprise planning resource.~~ RESA L EERREZY 09 - - 09 - NATER
system
Repayment of bank loan BEBITER 95 - - 95 - NATER
General working capital —HhEEEe 83 - - 83 - NATER
85.6 20.1 32 68.7 16.9

Please refer to the Prospectus for the original intended timeframe
for utilisation of the net proceeds. Since the outbreak of the
COVID-19 has slowed down the economic of Mainland China
and the world, orders of Dyeing services and Laces products had
a sharp decrease, and the Group were acting with more caution.
Certain plans of the use of proceeds from the IPO were slowing
down. The balance of the unutilised proceeds is expected to be

utilised in the coming year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have any important events after the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this annual report.

BHESRMEREBEIENRERHERX #2018
IR EFR o B COVID-19/E 85 DASR + /R B A # K
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Biographical Details of Directors
EFEREFIE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing (¥ % £) ("Mr. Tsoi"), aged 62, is a
controlling shareholder, an executive Director, and the chairman of
the Board and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Tsoi was appointed
as an executive Director of our Company on 30 September 2022.
He is responsible for the strategic planning and overall budget of
our Group.

Mr. Tsoi has over 30 years of experience in the industry of
manufacturing and distribution of shoes. He was the director of
Calson Investment Limited from July 1992 to October 2023, a
footwear distribution enterprise supplying leather, PVC, textile
shoes, sandals, etc. to customers worldwide and a director of
Calson Industrial International Company Limited, a company
engaged in property development business. Mr. Tsoi is also the
executive director of Changzhou Qifa Shoes Co., Ltd.* (& N X
BHEZE B[R RAA)), a company engaged in manufacturing and
distribution of shoes and Changzhou Qichen Investment Co., Ltd.*
(FMAARZE AR AT), acompany engaged in real estate sales
and property management, and a supervisor of Putian Qiming
Shoes Co., Ltd.* (B AR EEE B R A 7)), a company engaged
in manufacturing and distribution of shoes.

Since November 2023, he has been the director of Hope Faith
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Tsoi is also a Standing Committee of the Hunan Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“CPPCC"”) Hong Kong Convener, Vice-Chairman of
the Hong Kong Provincial CPPCC Member Association, School
Supervisor of TWGHSs Tsoi Wing Sing Primary School* (3 Z =3
2% E/NERE) Deputy Chairman of Hong Kong Volunteers
Federation* (& /# & T B BB ¥ 75 &) £ /%) and Expert of Silk Road
Planning Research Center* (%4 3% % &I #f 3t /0 = XK). Mr. Tsoi
was also a Standing Committee Member of the 5th Fujian Putian
Committee of the CPPCC, the chairman of Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals from 2019 to 2020, and the vice chairman of Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals from 2015 to 2019. Mr. Tsoi was also
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in recognition of his significant
contributions and outstanding service over a long period of time in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Tsoi is the father of Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki, the executive Director of
the Company.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Tsoi is not connected with
any other Directors or members of the senior management of our
Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors
R B

Mr. Lin Minqgiang (# R 3&), aged 68, is an executive Director. He
is responsible for the management, strategic planning and overall
budget of the dyeing services and manufacturing and sales of lace
business.

Mr. Lin Mingiang has over 30 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing business. Mr. Lin Mingiang was the committee
member of the Party Branch of Longxia Village of Changle District
in Fuzhou from April 1978 to August 1992. In August 1988, Mr.
Lin Mingiang took the role of the factory director of “Changle
Warp Knitted Fabrics Factory”, a collective enterprise established
in Fujian, which subsequently reformed as a limited liability
company and changed its name into Fujian Changle Xingsheng
Warpknitted Fabrics Co., Ltd.* (fBi2& RE&EmM R KRB AR
A \]) (“Xingsheng”) in October 1996. Mr. Lin Mingiang was the
executive director and the manager of Xingsheng from October
1996 to January 2006. After Deyun Technology merged with
Xingsheng by way of absorption. Mr. Lin Mingiang was appointed
as a director of Deyun Technology in January 2006. Over the years,
he has been responsible for planning the company strategy and
overall budget of Deyun Technology.

Mr. Lin Mingiang was awarded the certificate of completion
of the course of Business Information Strategy and Knowledge
Management CEO Advanced Training Class by School of
Information Science and Technology, Tsinghua University in July
2005.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Lin Mingiang is not

connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors
R B

Mr. Larry Stuart Torchin (“Mr. Torchin”), aged 73, is an
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Torchin was appointed as
an executive Director on 30 September 2022. He is responsible for
the sales and marketing of the footwear business of our Group.

Mr. Torchin has over 50 years of experience in the footwear
and apparel industry. He entered the industry in 1970 working
in a footwear chain store in Philadelphia and have since held
various positions in several companies across Europe, Asia and
South America. In 1979, Mr. Torchin built his first shoe company,
an lItalian-manufacturing footwear company, Eclisse Footwear
Company, which was thereafter sold to G.H. Bass & Company.

Mr. Torchin was the founder and a principal of Larry Stuart Ltd.,
a premium brand of women'’s footwear, which was acquired by
Brown Shoe Company in 1995. Mr. Torchin was the President
of MTI from 1999 to 2003, which sources and designs footwear
for many branded companies and retailers in the United States of
America. In 2008, Larry was brought in as a director for Donald J.
Pliner (DJP) and which he was also involved in its sale to a private
equity firm.

Mr. Torchin currently holds multiple positions across different
companies, including being the founder and chief executive officer
of LT Group Investment, and principal of Calson Investment Limited
since 2003, the advisor for Eclo Technology, and chief executive
officer of Traction Design group since 2021.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Torchin is not connected

with any other Directors or members of the senior management of
our Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors
R B

Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki (EH# 3 ) (“Ms. Tsoi”), aged 30, is an executive
Director of the Company. Ms. Tsoi was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 31 October 2023. She is in charge of
business development and also responsible for managing product
design and development, management of supply chain and
enhancement of the operation procedure and efficiency.

Ms. Tsoi has 8 years of experience in the merchandising industry.
Ms. Tsoi has worked in Calson Investment Limited from 2016 to
2021, a footwear distribution enterprise supplying leather, textile
shoes, sandals, etc. to customers worldwide. Since 2021, she has
been the director of Hope Faith Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Ms. Tsoi is also the legal representative and
an executive director of Putian Yingchuang Trading Company
Limited* (B H&AIE S BB A7), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability.

Ms. Tsoi obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration
from Loyola Marymount University, the United States of America,
in 2015.

Ms. Tsoi is the daughter of Mr. Tsoi, the chairman of the Board
and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Ms. Tsoi is not connected with

any other Directors or members of the senior management of our
Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors
R B

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Kit Ting (A% &) ("Mr. Chow"), aged 39,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 16 December 2020. Mr. Chow is
primarily responsible for supervising the management of our Group
independently.

Mr. Chow has over 15 years’ experience in the fields of auditing,
accounting, corporate finance, compliance and company
secretarial. He worked for an international accounting firm and
various private or listed companies as financial controller and
company secretary. From July 2018 to July 2021, Mr. Chow
worked as an independent non-executive director at USPACE
Technology Group Limited (formerly known as Eternity Technology
Holdings Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock
Code: 1725.HK). He has been the company secretary of Investech
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1087.HK) since January 2023. He has been
the company secretary of Plus Group Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2486.
HK) since May 2023.

Mr. Chow obtained a bachelor’s degree of commerce in accounting
from Macquarie University, Australia, in November 2007, and an
EMBA degree from Chinese University of Hong Kong (& /& # X
K E) in November 2021. He was accredited as a Certified Public
Accountant in CPA Australia and as a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September 2011 and
May 2015, respectively.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Chow is not connected with

any other Directors or members of the senior management of our
Company.

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023

BYFHITES

BHBEXE (AKX%E]D 395 R20205F12 A
16HEZAABIYFNTES BEXEZEETER
EFHMEZEEKE - AAAEFZEBEBIEER
EEEE -

AEEREFT S5t DERE AHRLARW
EEHERSISFLR - BN —HBBR A
EEMRSEAAAR T RAREAMBRAERA
AME - R2018F7 A E2021F 78 AXER
MNEMAR R EEER AR (A EEREERE
RAR)EEBIULIENITES ZRRRHNRES
BERSMAERAR ([BRA]) Em (MR
1725) - B2023F 1 AR H—EREIZERAR
REETRARWE  ZARRMRB AT L (3
DARER - 1087) » B 202345 A F—EHEETY
LMEBITRARARANAAWE  ZARE
A PESE AT BT BT (R R5R  2486.HK) ©

FEAER2007F 11 AEBSEEHRAEGTEHE
TE - WH2021F 1 AESEBERXAETR
ERELEM - B BIR2011F 98 K201585
RERTARMNESHMASSEREBSHAA

BEEHE-

BRAEIEEI  ARLERARFEMEMBE
ERSREREREMERE -



Biographical Details of Directors
R B

Dr. Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin (it B %) (“Dr. Chiu"), aged 73,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director, a
member of the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee on 30 September 2022. Dr. Chiu is
primarily responsible for supervising the management of our Group
independently.

Dr. Chiu has more than 40 years of international experience in real
estate in Hong Kong and overseas. Dr. Chiu joined the CK Group
in 1997 and has been an executive director since February 2015
and an executive committee member since June 2015 of CK Asset
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1113), heading the real estate sales, marketing and property
management teams. Dr. Chiu is a director of certain companies
controlled by certain substantial shareholders of CK Asset Holdings
Limited within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Dr. Chiu is also
the chairman of ARA Asset Management (Prosperity) Limited as
the manager of Prosperity REIT, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 808); a non-executive director of ARA Asset
Management (Fortune) Limited as the manager of Fortune REIT,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 778); and a
non-executive director of ESR Group Limited (formerly known as
ESR Cayman Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1821).

Dr. Chiu is a Fellow of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,
a Council Member and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors, a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate
Administrators, a Vice Chairman of the Board of Governors of
Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation, an Honorary Associate
Member of Business of Trent University, Canada, a member of the
Singapore Management University International Advisory Council
in China, an Adjunct Professor and a member of the Advisory
Committee of the School of Business of Hong Kong Baptist
University and a Senior Departmental Fellow of the Department of
Land Economy at University of Cambridge, the United Kingdom.
Dr. Chiu was previously an Honorary Professor of School of
Pharmaceutical Sciences of Sun Yat-sen University and a member
of the Standing Committee of the 12th Shanghai Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
People’s Republic of China.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Dr. Chiu is not connected with
any other Directors or members of the senior management of our
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors
R B

Mr. Chan Hoi Shan (BR’& L) (“Mr. Chan"), aged 67, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 30 September
2022. Mr. Chan is primarily responsible for supervising the
management of our Group independently.

Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience in the sales industry. He
has worked in the sales team at Devie & Co. Limited in Hong Kong,
and thereafter he served as the sales manager at Huls Far East
Co., Ltd in Hong Kong, both of which were principally engaged in
chemical trading business. He is currently the director of Goldward
Fine Chemicals Ltd which is principally engaged in trading of
chemical products.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Chan is not connected with

any other Directors or members of the senior management of our
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
/\ Al /\—/\— \

PEERWE

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as
well as preserving the interests of its shareholders as a whole. The
Company has adopted a set of corporate governance practices
which aligns with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company has also established whistleblowing channels for
external parties to raise concerns in relation to possible misconduct
of the Group, its employees or Directors in a confidential or
anonymous manner, or both. The Board has delegated authority to
the Audit Committee to review the Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-
Corruption Policy and the Group Whistleblowing Policy periodically
and receive updates on matters concerning breaches of the Group
Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy and whistleblowing
disclosures.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code during the Reporting Period.

The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group to ensure compliance with the
CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the Reporting
Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. During
the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with
the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing is the chairman of the Board and executive
Director, who has a pivotal role to the Board in relation to the
management, strategic planning and overall budget of our Group.

The Company has not appointed any chief executive officer. The
daily operation and management of the Company is monitored
by the executive Directors. The Board considers the present
structure is more suitable for the Company because it can promote
the efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s
strategies.

CG Code provision C.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at
least annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
directors without the presence of other directors. During the
Reporting Period, the Company has conducted such meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance, business and corporate
governance. Their skills, expertise and number in the Board ensure
that strong independent views and judgement are brought in the
Board’s deliberations and that such views and judgement carry
weight in the Board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the Board to maintain high standards
of compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements, and provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each
independent non-executive Director during their terms of
appointment. The Company received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board’s composition
during the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual
report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

B9

EECHAHNERNTEER =R BUIENITE
HHEK -EZTENRERBRAFERB AR
E PN

Date of joining

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities

HE Fie HEl MAXEEBH ABERBE

Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing 62 Male 30 September 2022 Overseeing the strategic planning and overall
budget of our Group

BERNE 62 5% 5 2022%9A30H ERAEENRBEREI L BERA

Mr. Lin Mingiang 68 Male 23 January 2006 Overseeing the management, strategic
planning and overall budget of the business
of dyeing services and manufacturing of
lace of our Group

MR FE A& 68 5% % 20064 1H23H ERAREEICERBERG L EEEBN
EE - RRAEREERE

Mr. Larry Stuart 73 Male 30 September 2022 Overseeing sales and marketing of the

Torchin footwear business of our Group
Larry Stuart 73 5% B 2022%9A30H ERAEENERHEEREHER
Torchin 5t 4

Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki @ 30 Female 1 December 2021 Overseeing business development,
management of product design and
development, management of supply
chain, and enhancement of the operation
procedures and efficiency of our Group

BB AL L0 305% . 2021F12A1H ERAEENEBINE - EmRe R

@ Ms Tsoi Lam Ki had obtained the legal advice on 31 October (

)

2023 referred to in Listing Rule 3.09D, and she has confirmed she
understood her obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

HI TR R R B E F
C

EIME L T R2023F 10 A31BBB LHREISE
3.09D 18 ERER  ENCHRBES A LEHET
ARESEMT -

BEZREBERAE — T =55

25



Corporate Governance Report
TrEELRWmE

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES

Date of joining
Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities

e Fir MR MAREEBH ABRBE

Mr. Chow Kit Ting 39 Male 16 December 2020 Supervising and providing independent advice
to our Group; serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee; serves on the
Remuneration Committee

202012 A 16 H EEAEERMEREBYUER  BEEF
REEgXR BEEFMEEEKE

3

BABELE 395%

Dr. Chiu Kwok Hung, 73 Male 30 September 2022 Supervising and providing independent advice
Justin to our Group; serves on the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee
202249 A30H EEAEENMEREBYER  BEH
WEEEe BEXRZESLRERRXEES

B A 1S 735

N

Mr. Chan Hoi Shan 67 Male 30 September 2022 Supervising and providing independent advice
to our Group; serves as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, serves on
the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee

BREIL e E 67 5% % 202299 A30H EEAEENMEREBYER  BEH
MEEGEF BEZZEGRREELREE
2HE

Biographical details of the members of the Board and relationship EZE€KEMNERFBERESSKNE ZHMBE
between members of the Board are set out in the section headed — EHRAFIREFEBEFIE] —&0 -
“Biographical Details of Directors” in this annual report.
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The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as the executive Directors possess extensive
experience in managing the Group’s business operations; and
professional knowledge in the fabrics weaving industry, dyeing
industry, and footwear industry while the three independent
non-executive Directors possess professional knowledge and
broad experience in accounting, finance, business and corporate
governance. The Directors are of the opinion that the current
Board structure can ensure the independence and objectivity of
the Board and also safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of three
independent non- executive Directors (representing at least one-
third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. It oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions,
financial performance and internal controls and it is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board shall make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Daily business operations and management, inter alia, the
implementation of strategies are delegated to the executive
Directors along with other senior management. They report
periodically to the Board their work and business decisions.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing, Mr. Larry Stuart Torchin, Dr. Chiu
Kwok Hung, Justin and Mr. Chan Hoi Shan has signed a letter
of appointment with our Company up to a term of three years
commencing from 30 September 2022. Each of Mr. Lin Mingiang
and Mr. Chow Kit Ting has signed a letter of appointment with
our Company up to a term of three years which commenced
from 16 December 2020 and Mr. Chow Kit Ting renewed his
appointment on 30 September 2022. Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki has signed
a letter of appointment with our Company up to a term of three
years commencing from 31 October 2023. These appointments
may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment.
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Pursuant to article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third
shall be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors to retire
in each year shall be those who have been in office longest since
their last re-election or appointment but, as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles, at any time or from time
to time, the Board shall have the power to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
additional Director to the existing Board subject to any maximum
number of Directors, if any, as may be determined by the members
in a general meeting. Any Director so appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
our Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of our Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
annual general meeting.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the
Company before the expiration of his term of office (but without
prejudice to any claim which such Director may have for damages
for any breach of any contract between him and the Company)
and the Company may by ordinary resolution appoint another in
his place.

Pursuant to articles 108 and 112 of the Articles, Mr. Tsoi Wing
Sing, Mr. Lin Mingiang and Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM").
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to maintain high
standard of corporate governance, the Company has adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity
of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the criteria in
selecting candidates to the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company is also committed to adopting a similar approach to
promote diversity of the management (including but not limited to
the senior management) to enhance the effectiveness of corporate
governance. The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and
skills, including knowledge and experience in the areas of fabrics
weaving and dyeing, footwear business, auditing and accounting
and business administration. Furthermore, the Directors range from
30 years old to 73 years old, and comprise 6 males and 1 female.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity
of Board members and compliance with relevant codes governing
board diversity under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy and diversity profile (including
gender balance) from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revision
that may be required and recommend any such revisions to the
Board. The Company will also disclose in the corporate governance
report on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives on
an annual basis.
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NOMINATION POLICY RBEE

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination ARG EARZLEZESHNIELAHXRX (8K
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to consider and make K] UEBEAENESHERATIRIEEBES -
recommendations on suitable candidates for directorship.

Selection criteria R EAE

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the RIFEEHEFEEABASELTH  EREEB€BE
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed ~ B TFFIEEZEAELE :
candidate:

ok
i

(1) reputation for integrity; (1) W

il

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the — (2) RAEBTIEE TS mEA K M &5
Group is engaged in;

(3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest; (3) A ARERIEEEEE AR

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,  (4) &HENZ L BFEEFREAERE 4R
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational Fiz (185 L) ~ MEREE B = UK
background and length of service; BER

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills, ~ (5) &F » BIFEAR QA RO EEEMEBRY
knowledge and industry experience that are relevant to the AW PR ABRITELS
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments  (6) RAZEZAZUNTEBRBAZIERETH
that may demand the attention of the candidate; H b EGE

(7) requirement for the Board to have independent non- (7)) +tHHBEAREESBRABIIFNTES

executive directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and MARE  RIREAL R EWHRAIZE3.08 - 3.09
whether the candidates would be considered independent N3 GFTEME L MRS R BB R ILAL

with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable  (8) ZARRIMEZEZ LB ERIREZEZES A
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for ENEFRESTCMERANEA A ERF:
achieving diversity on the Board; and K

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s (9) AR FEBMEBELENEMTE -
business.

The aforesaid factors are for reference only, and not meant to ~ Ll EAEEHZE  TAGEREFERE - 5

be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the ~ TEREMER - REZZE QA NBEREZERAE
discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate. AEAEMAL
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Procedures for nominating director

Subject to the provisions in the Articles and the Listing Rules, if the
Board recognises the need for an additional Director or a member
of senior management, the following procedures will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria, possibly with assistance from external
agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the company secretary
of the Company will provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(3) The Nomination Committee will make recommendation to
the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an independent non-
executive director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.
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Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and reports to the Board annually.

PROCEEDINGS OF GENERAL MEETINGS,
BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business. An AGM shall be called by at least 21 days’ notice in
writing, and a general meeting of the Company, other than an
AGM, shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice in writing. The
notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed
to be served and of the day for which it is given, and must specify
the time, place and agenda of the meeting and particulars of the
resolution(s) to be considered at that meeting and, in the case of
special business, the general nature of that business.

A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board may be held
by means of such telephone, electronic or other communication
facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting.

A Director shall not vote (nor shall he be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract or
arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his close associate(s)
has/have a material interest, and if he shall do so his vote shall
not be counted (nor shall he be counted in the quorum for that
resolution).

At least four regular Board meetings involving active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors will be held at approximately quarterly
intervals in each financial year to comply with code provision C.5.1
of the CG Code. All Directors will have the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for the regular board meetings. Written
notice of at least 14 days will be given of a regular board meeting
to all Directors, and agenda and accompanying board papers will
be sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of meeting. Five Board meetings were held during the Reporting
Period.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings of the Company held during the Reporting
Period are set out in the table below:

RBEHE SEFRARARTNESFTERE
FEREEERNBLFREHN TR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEREEERE
Audit Nomination Remuneration

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
ESHE BExg EREEE REZEE FMEES
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing BERNAE 5/5 - 11 -
Mr. Lin Mingiang MR EE 5/5 - - -
Mr. Larry Stuart Torchin Larry Stuart Torchin 5¢ 4 5/5 - - -
Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki (appointed on #2#EL 22+ (742023 4

31 October 2023) 10A31 BEZME) 1”1 - - -
Ms. Jian Xuegen (resigned on 55 R &4 (742023 F

31 October 2023) 10 A31 BET) 4/4 - - -
Independent Non-Executive B FEHTESE

Directors
Mr. Chow Kit Ting BHELE 5/5 3/3 - 11
Dr. Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin B8+ 5/5 3/3 11 11
Mr. Chan Hoi Shan PRG L 5 A= 5/5 33 171 171

The management has been providing all members of the Board a
monthly update in accordance with code provision D.1.2 of the CG
Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which were posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the
Company (www.starshineholdings.com). All committees should
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.
All committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 16 December
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and paragraph D.3 of the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chow Kit Ting, who holds
the appropriate professional qualifications as required under Rules
3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and have two other members,
namely Dr. Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin and Mr. Chan Hoi Shan.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (i) assisting the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems of the
Group; (ii) overseeing the audit process and performing other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board; (iii) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance;
(iv) making recommendations to the Board; and (v) ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held three
meeting and the work performed by the Audit Committee was
summarised as follows:

(1) reviewed the Company’s interim results and annual results;

(2) reviewed the findings and recommendations from external
auditors;

(3) reviewed the independence and engagement of the external
auditors;

(4) reviewed the audit plan, the development in new accounting
standards and their impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position;

(5) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial

reporting functions;

(6) reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems;

(7) reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and
practices;

(8) reviewed the Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy
and the Group Whistleblowing Policy; and

(9) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the
appointment of the new auditor and related matters.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company the annual results and annual report of the Company for
the Reporting Period, including accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting
Period comply with applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on
16 December 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph E of the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Hoi Shan,
and have two other members, namely Mr. Chow Kit Ting and Dr.
Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (i) making recommendations
to the Board on our policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration; (ii) determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors; and (iii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposal with reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to review the performance and remuneration
packages and emoluments of the Directors and senior
management and considered that they are fair and reasonable
during the Reporting Period.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 16
December 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph B.3 of the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing, and
have two other members, namely Dr. Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin and
Mr. Chan Hoi Shan.

The primary duties of our Nomination Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; (i) making recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment and re-
appointment of Director; and (iv) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting and the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of
independence non-executive Directors, identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board members and make recommendations
to the Board and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and other
matters of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to ensure sustainable development of its
business operations and to provide a favorable return to its
shareholders.

The declaration and payment of future dividends will be subject
to the decision of the Board having regard to various factors,
including but not limited to the Group’s business operation
and financial performance, profitability, business development,
prospect, capital requirements, and economic outlook. Declaration
and payment of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and
the Articles. The dividend distribution record in the past may not
be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Board in the future. Currently,
the Group does not have a fixed dividend policy and does not have
a pre-determined dividend distribution action.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board thinks
fit and necessary. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that any dividend
will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the
Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has delegated the corporate governance function to the
Audit Committee, whose authorities include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of the
Group's operations with applicable laws and regulations.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the CG Code provision C.1.4, all Directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company recommends and/or arranges the Directors
to participate in Director’s training courses in order to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, the Company
also provides relevant reading materials to the Directors for their
studying and reference. All Directors, namely Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing,
Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Larry Stuart Torchin, Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki,
Mr. Chow Kit Ting, Dr. Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin and Mr. Chan
Hoi Shan confirmed that they have complied with the CG Code
provision C.1.4 during the Reporting Period by attending seminars
and briefings and reading relevant materials.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as auditor of the Company and
Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company to
fill the casual vacancy, both with effect from 4 December 2023.
During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid or payable to
the Company’s auditor is set out below:

¥ BB 3 B

BEROKESTANESATEE AR R ZEA—B; -
MPABERR (BB GHSEMBERAGDESR
TARRBZEA  NEFERHEHR mEAHR
2023F 12 AABRBRER - RIREBHE  MARQF]
BN S A RES BT

Fee paid
or payable
Services rendered P it B9 BR 75 ETRESER
RMB’000
AR®T T
PricewaterhouseCoopers BEORKEGHELM

— Non-audit services —EFET RS 447

Mazars CPA Limited TERB(EB)EHMEERERAF
— Audit services —E5 R 895
— Non-audit services —IEFIRTE 45
1,387

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Reporting
Period, the Directors:

o assessed the reasonableness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements taking into consideration the Group’s
financial performance, position, cash flows and liquidity
ratios;

e  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgements and estimates in a prudent, fair and
reasonable manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement
of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 93
to page 102 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control

The Group maintains an effective internal control and risk
management system to safeguard the investment of the Company’s
shareholders and the Group’s assets at all times.

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility
for overseeing the Company’s internal control, financial control
and risk management system and shall monitor its effectiveness
on an ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems will be conducted by the
Board at least annually.

The Company has established the following risk management
procedures to provide reasonable assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud:

(1) Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could
affect the achievement of goals of the Group;

(2) Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk
according to its likely impact and the likelihood of occurrence;
and

(3) Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to mitigate
the risks.

Risk identification and assessment are performed or updated
annually, and the results of risk assessment, evaluation and
mitigation of each function or operation are documented to
communicate to the Board and management for reviews.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are, however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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A review on the internal control systems of the Company,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions has been carried out by an independent
consultancy company. The independent consultancy company has
conducted analysis and independent assessment on the adequacy
and the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management of the Group, and has submitted the findings and
recommendations to the Audit Committee and the Board. Over the
Audit Committee meeting and Board meeting held on 28 March
2024, the Audit Committee and the Board reviewed the report
issued by independent consultancy company and they are of the
view that the internal control measures in place are adequate and
effective to safeguard the interest of Company’s shareholders and
the Group’s assets.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking into
account the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business,
the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is no
immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group.

The Group has implemented a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. The policy
provides guidelines to the Directors and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

(1)  define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board to enable them to assess inside
information and make timely disclosures, if necessary;

(2) controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;
and

(3) procedures of communicating with the Group’s stakeholders
in ways which are in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Xu Jing, aged 46, was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 20 February 2020 and she is responsible for
the Group’s company secretarial duties and corporate governance
matters in relation to the Company. Ms. Xu Jing possesses
the necessary qualification and experience, and is capable of
performing the functions of a company secretary. During the
Reporting Period, Ms. Xu Jing confirmed that she has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meetings may be convened on the requisition of one or more
members holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article 64 of
the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above in
the paragraph headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a
retiring Director) shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office of the Company or at the Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company. The
period for lodgement of such notices will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least seven days.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders in the following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication policy to
ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s head office or principal place of business
in Hong Kong. The Company also maintains a website at www.
starshineholdings.com where up-to-date information and updates
of the Company’s operations, performances and strategies are
available to public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 25 May 2023, the Company adopted the second amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association for the purpose
of (i) conforming with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards
set out in the Listing Rules; (ii) incorporating other corresponding
house-keeping and consequential amendments; and (iii) reflecting
the Change of Company Name, which had been uploaded to
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Save as
disclosed above, there had been no changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the Reporting Period.

REEBRE

ARAHNRTAM  BHBBRALBAAR
AR ORE - AR AEBTH AR ARES
BEH

s MMBERRZXEFERTHEERBE

s RELTRINSEREST NARAHE
R ABETIEFERPMEERSE
AR TBEEMRERBRBE R

ARBBRRENREESHRRNEYE

2
RS

Jim
W

FERI M RRBBH RN ERBRNE R &

38 & BROR o ZEURE e A EREA

2B
HF

RARIFEREREEBREFR MEHERARRE
REBEREENER RARBDSUBRES -
FHERABRREEZ MEEFSHLARAA
EAMAM AIBEZEARARANEHRFRERXSD
BEELEEMB - AARNMKR AR (BB
www_starshineholdings.com) * FIE & & & K E
FIARAEE  RENKE  UHEAREH -

HEBERXH

7 2023F 5258 F AR RIRNKE ZK/EEI RE
DI B4R 4 5 A2 K40 Ko 40 81+ BAG) B2 T AR B P ER
%00 IR SRR R 2E BIAR 35— B (i) AN A KLt 4R FE
BRXEER RiVRBAREZBES - WE £
B AR B R B FABE o B E SO FEE SN
RABMABER N REHEBRESS -

BEZREBERAE — T =55

43



44

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI e kEnams

ABOUT THE REPORT

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited (the “Company” and its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) presents the Environmental,
Social and Governance ("ESG") report, which contains information
on the Group’s business activities, ESG governance, strategies,
performances and ongoing commitment towards sustainable
development. This ESG report is intended to enhance the
confidence and understanding of the stakeholders towards the
Group.

COMPANY PROFILE

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) manufacturing of lace and provision of
dyeing services; and (ii) footwear business. Services and products
of the Group’s business segment can be broadly categorised into
(i) dyeing services; (ii) manufacturing of lace and provision of
dyeing services; and (iii) footwear business. The Group’s business
operations are carried out in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

The Group presents its ESG report that captures the ESG
performance of the Group from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023.

Based on the principle of materiality, the scope of this report
covers the Group's business operations in both Mainland China
and Hong Kong. All the companies of the Group were included in
the assessment of ESG performance for the purpose of this report.

BASIS FOR COMPILATION OF THE REPORT

This report was prepared with reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). An assessment on
the applicability and materiality of the relevant key performance
indicators under the ESG Reporting Guide had been conducted.
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ESG REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group applied the following principles in this report:

Materiality: In compliance with the requirements of materiality
principle defined by the Stock Exchange, the ESG issues considered
by the board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
ESG working group, stakeholders communication, identification
process of substantive issues and the substantive issues are
disclosed in the corresponding part of this report.

Quantitative: Targets have been set by the Group to reduce
the emissions from business operations and to evaluate the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems. Statistical
standards, methods, assumptions and/or calculation tools for
guantitative key performance indicators herein and source of
conversion factors are all explained below.

Balance: This report shall provide an unbiased picture of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 December 2023
(the “Reporting Period”) and should avoid selections, omissions,
or presentation formats that may inappropriately influence the
decision or judgment made by the report readers.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to the data
disclosed in this report shall be consistent.

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges the importance of ESG commitment and
it takes ESG into consideration in its decision making process. The
Group has developed an ESG governance structure to integrate
ESG into its business operations and align ESG governance with its
strategic growth. The ESG governance structure is divided into two
components, namely the Board and an ESG working group.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy
and reporting. It oversees the overall governance and progress
of the Group’s ESG management system, policies, commitments,
strategies and objectives. It also participates in the evaluation and
determination of ESG-related risks. The Group implemented ESG
management system and policies to ensure compliance with the
relevant environmental protection laws and regulations, achieve
other ESG objectives and mitigate ESG-related risks. It also formed
a designated ESG working group to oversee and monitor the
implementation and effectiveness of the ESG management system
and policies. The ESG working group reports to the Board regularly.
In order to evaluate, prioritise and manage the Group’s material
ESG issues, the Board discusses and reviews the Group’s ESG-
related risks, performance, progress, goals and targets regularly
with the assistance of the ESG working group. The Board reviewed
the contents disclosed in this report.
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The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from the
relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management and
operation information collected by the Group.

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance structure
and practices has been set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

ESG STRATEGIES

The Group believes that it is essential to implement appropriate
ESG strategies in order to achieve sustainable corporate
development. Key ESG strategies of the Group are set out below:

o Maintain regular communications with stakeholders to
identify ESG aspects that are material and relevant.

o Maintain high environmental and social standards to ensure
sustainable development of the Group’s business operations.

o Comply with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
the Group’s business operations including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

o Encourage employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social

activities that benefit the community as a whole.

o Review the ESG strategies on an annual basis.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT BEHrhE2H

The Group listens to its stakeholders as their contributions are ~ AEEEBFHENER  AABRENERE A
critical to the Group’s long-term success and development. The SEEMNRPKNIEZEZFEZ - ALEBRBAS
Group communicates with its stakeholders regularly through  TERETFHEZHESRR U THRESHBEDL
diverse channels to understand their concerns and respond in a  NEHHEIE - FREIANEB RN ESHENE -

timely manner. The table below sets forth the key stakeholders 7 &% BIANE B M) E K ESG B REIR ML -

identified by the Group and provides the basis for identifying

substantive ESG issues of the Group.

Stakeholders
B0E

Expectations and concerns
HE KRB

Management responses
B | fE

Shareholders

IR

Governments and
regulatory bodies

BT B e

Act in the best interest of shareholders
RRREENRITE

Return on investment

& Bl ¥R

Information disclosure

BE#E

Compliance with laws and regulations
BPEEER

Compliance with laws and regulations
BPEREER

Business and economic development
EEMEEER

Social contribution

tEaR

Fulfilment of tax obligations

BT ER

Environment protection

BARE

e Actively identify attractive business
opportunities
BBy E AR NH R

e Improve profitability
Bre= L

e Regular information disclosure
EHE R E

e  Enhance risk management and internal
controls

N sa B i I8 K ) BB

e Enhance risk management and internal
controls
hnog [ b B B K A B 2

e  Regular update on relevant laws and
regulations
EHE SERAEER

e Pay tax in full and on time
R R EEN

e Purchase/upgrade facilities to reduce
emissions arising from the production
process
BB FREER D EEBRRES
B HER

BEZREBERAE — T =55
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Stakeholders

Expectations and concerns

Management responses

BoE HEREYT B B fE
Employees e  Employee compensation and benefits e  Offer attractive salary and incentives
== 8 T & & A based on performance
e Training and career development RIREERE ARSI N F KR EZE
moll MR E R e Provide regular trainings for employees
e Safe working environment RETEE T
ZE2TIERE e Monitor work safety and make sure
employees are familiar with the work
safety handbook
ERTEZ2UHEREIAEIEZS
F i
Customers e Quality products and services e Enhance quality control on production
®P BEEMERE process and products
e Protection of customers rights MR A ERENEMNE SIS
RERFER e Perform the contract according to law
ERBH
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e Build a long-term reliable supply chain
e HIEEE B REAT SEMMERE
e Business ethics and credibility e Perform the contract according to law
[HESESREEAE KERBH)
Communities/public e Environmental protection e Reduce environmental pollutions
e N RIERE WA BRIB )2
e Employment opportunities e Purchase/upgrade facilities to reduce
ThEME emissions arising from the production

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The ESG working group reviews the Group’s operations and

EEMMML

ESG TR/ NMAEE 7RG B #8038 5l 1 B ESG &

identifies relevant ESG issues and assesses the importance of R WG BHEEHWEERNBHENEEZE -

related matters to its businesses and stakeholders. The ESG
working group regularly collects information and views from
relevant departments and stakeholders of the Group to identify

ESGTiE/NMEB RS BB AP M5 EEHK
FEHMRER  UAHRERESGEE - TRHHIE
RIEHEB M RNEEENESGHERE

significant ESG issues. The table below sets forth the Group’s

significant ESG issues based on their relative importance:

ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
ESGH EIE I HIIMESGH E

The Group’s significant ESG issues

AEBHNEKRESGEE

(A) Environmental
(A)EBE

A1 Emissions

AVEER

A2 Use of Resources

A2 &R FIH

A3 Environment and Natural Resources
ASIRIERKAREIR

A4 Climate Change
A4 RIRE b

Air pollutant emissions

RS R BE L

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
AERE(EZRE]) B
Sewage treatment

EIKER R

Hazardous waste management

BEEREERMER

Energy management
BERE TR
Water management
FKE®R

Negative environmental impacts arising from business
operations

EBEBEEEENAMRETZE

Global warming
2IREE

BEZREBERAE — T =55
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ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
ESGH EIEEI HIIMESGH E

The Group's significant ESG issues

REBMNWEKXESGEE

(B) Social
(B)iE

B1 Employment
B1{E &

B2 Health and Safety
B2 s

B3 Development and Training
B3 & & Mg

B4 Labour Standards
B4 45 T 4R

B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 fH fE it & 12

B6 Product Responsibility
B6EmEE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7RE S

B8 Community Investment
B8it[@ix &

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

This ESG report had undergone the internal review process of
the Group and was reviewed by the Board. During the Reporting
Period, the Group confirmed that it has established appropriate  Z8HIF S B A KM EIREE RNIPEIEH|E -
and effective management policies and internal control systems for

Recruitment, promotion, and dismissal Compensation and
benefits

B B R R E I AR R

Equal opportunities, diversity, and anti-discrimination
FERE  ZRERRER

Safety production management
LZEREEER

Employee development and training
8 TR RE

Prevention of child and forced labour
[y b T Mo ss T

Supply chain management
HrEsEEIR

Product quality and safety
EnEERELE
Customer satisfaction

EFMEE

Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering

REF REFERRLE

Corporate social responsibility
TELTEET

R R AL

WHERFTHEE AR A ESGIREESI R IE °

ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents comply with

the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

Bk B 3R

RESGHRECBBAEENAIEMERF L
EXEH NWMENHE  AEEEREEBESG

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of this ESG
report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development by
mailing to Unit 1705, 17/F Strand 50, 50 Bonham Strand, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect the
environment and it has implemented policies to reduce
emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of resources.

The Group’s business is subject to various environmental
protection laws and regulations of People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") as well as environmental regulations promulgated
by the local governments where the Group operates. Under
the prevailing laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group is
subject to provisions including Environmental Protection law
of the PRC (AR #E A R £ M IR 55 R # %), Promotion of
Cleaner Production Law of the PRC (fF 2 A R £ F1 B /5 2
H E{R#K), Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC (FF #E A R £ MBI 7K 55 2[5 )8 7%), Prevention and
Control of Environmental Noise Pollution Law of the PRC (F
AR MBI IR IE R 85 078 )%), and Prevention and
Control of Solid Waste Pollution Law of the PRC (A % A R 4t
AN [E] 88 RE )5 R IR B RE).

To ensure compliance with the latest environmental laws
and regulations, the Group has implemented stringent
environmental protection policies setting out its goals and
policies in relation to environmental matters. The Group has
also installed air filtration facilities and sewage treatment
system to reduce emissions. The Group obtained a certificate
for complying with the requirement of GB/T 24001-2016/
ISO14001:2015 for its environmental management system on
11 October 2018.

The Group is required under the PRC law to obtain a valid
pollutant discharge permit for its production facilities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group obtained all relevant
pollutant discharge permit and it complied with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations in all material respects
and had not been subject to any material penalty in relation
to environmental protection.

BRI

AREBARERERBNEML L O BB
BRI BRRIESERNBREK -
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A.1 Emissions

Emissions from the Group’s production process include
air pollutants, sewage and solid waste.

In order to reduce the level of pollution, the Group has (i)
upgraded its boilers to generate heat from natural gas
for its dyeing services, which would significantly reduce
the amount of air pollutants emitted; and (ii) installed a
sewage treatment system to collect and process sewage
to reduce hazardous substance in the sewage generated
during the dyeing process and in accordance with
different national standards (GB 13271-2014 for air and
GB 4287-2012 for wastewater) in the PRC, which are
comparable to corresponding international standards.
An online real-time monitoring system has also been
installed to connect such facilities to environmental
authority of the PRC government, ensuring that the
Group can meet the pollutant emission standard at all
times. The Group has been spending continuous effort
to enhance its equipment and facilities for satisfying
the increasingly stringent environmental protection
requirement. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not exceed any maximum pollutants emission
standards under the monitoring system and maintained
a clean record with the government.

To complement with the use of natural-gas-boiler,
the Group has also acquired some crucial waste
treatment equipment, including flue gas purifying
treatment machines which can transform and filter the
concentrated smoke produced by its natural-gas-boiler
to less harmful substances and water vapour. This new
equipment allows the Group to control the amount of
pollutants emitted to the environment in a more stable
way and fulfil the discharge standard stipulated by the
PRC government.
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Besides, the Group has a number of vehicles for
travelling and transportation of materials and products,
which generate exhaust gas from the combustion
of petrol and diesel. The Group’s emission reduction
measures for vehicles include:

e turn off the engine when the vehicle is not in use;

e plan routes ahead of time to reduce route
repetition and optimise fuel consumption;

o undergo maintenance service regularly to ensure
optimal engine performance and fuel use;

° use electric vehicles; and

° optimise operational procedures to increase
efficiency and reduce vehicle idling rates.

(i)  Air pollutant emissions

During the Reporting Period, air pollutants
generated from the use of the Group's coal-
burning-boiler contributed to the emission of
18.04 kg (2022: 18.76 kg) of nitrogen oxides
(NOx), 18.52 kg (2022: 19.26 kg) of sulphur oxides
(SOx) and 3.02 kg (2022: 3.14 kqg) of respiratory
suspended particles (PM), and air pollutants
generated from the use of the Group’s motor
vehicles contributed to the emission of 58.22 kg
(2022: 352.24 kg) of nitrogen oxides (NOx), 0.73
kg (2022: 0.61 kg) of sulphur oxides (SOx) and
4.32 kg (2022: 33.82 kqg) of respiratory suspended
particles (PM).

Air pollutant emissions reduction target
To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,

the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
air pollutant emissions as follows:

o AEEBEERERLHTRER
MHRERNBEE ZERDERS
REE VR R SME LR - REBERK
HERBHEREE

s HEMDEMEBERMBRAEDK:

o IRATAEIEA  URAEAREREY
BALKRHERE

o TEHETTHERBURRRENE
Bt RE RIMEFE

o EREHHE:R

o BILEERRF URSEMAMEL
B AEEER .

() ZEFOTRYHK

RiEHE FRAAESENRE
MIBELHNTRSRYWERIEN
18.04 T 52 (20224 : 18.76 T 72)
RELP(NOX) ~ 18.52 F 3% (2022
F:19.26F 7)) Wi &1k ¥ (SOx) &
3.02F % (20224 :3.14F 72) A
W A ST FB R (PM) A K2 fF F AR 52
[ ) B BB 7 A Y 2 RS WS B
PEk58.22 F 72 (2022 4 : 352.24
F7m)ARE/ALWNOX) - 0.73F =
(20224 : 0.61 F =) HE(LH (SOx)
$432F % (20224 : 33.82F 52)
AR A F B (PM) ©

ERSRYRPEEIZ
AR ER AREBMESGE R

REBRERBERTEMYEBERE
AEtwBiR - AT

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline year Status
RBEE W& ERFE AR

NOx emission intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
AAMPREE 2027 F R 2% 2022 F EITH
SOx emission intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
mALMPEREE 2027 FRIR D 2% 2022 F TR
PM emission intensity Reduce 2% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
BIFNTHEREE 2027 F AR A 2% 2022 F #iTH
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(ii) GHG emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
activities contributed to 37,030.85 tonnes (2022:
38,209.38 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
(carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and
hydrofluorocarbons) GHG emissions. The table

(ii)

BERBEIL

NREHE AREXRGEBHES
37,030.85 M (2022 %F : 38,209.38
M) —&EftmEE (Zakik - F
g —EEE—ARSARREED)
HUBRERBEHN - TRHIIAEE

below sets forth details of the Group’s GHG EHEEHEEREENGES

emissions by scope:

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
HZE2023F HZE2022F
1283181 12A3181E
FE FE
Scope of GHG emissions Unit Emission Emission
BERBHEREER B HRE HmE
Scope 1 Direct emissions
EE1EEFER
Consumption of coal during the use  tCO,e 24,334.02 25,308.45
of coal-burning-boiler WA bikE =
KR SR 18 50 PR B AR R 0 PR OB A
Combustion of petrol and diesel for  tCO,e 119.40 97.82
mobile vehicles W tikE E
B B 0 R BB A
Scope 2 Indirect emissions
EE 2 BEEEN
Purchased electricity tCOse 12,267.71 12,629.05
SMNEE WA LiEE
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions
EE3HMEEREN
Paper waste disposal tCOse - 0.96
ERRE WA LiREE
Water consumption tCOze 305.88 173.10
FKE WA LiEE
Business air travel tCOse 3.84 -
2 75 2= ik WA LiEE
Total GHG emissions tCO,e 37,030.85 38,209.38
BERBHREE WMoFBmEE
Intensity tCO2e/employee (note 3) 70.27 105.55
RnE W_E{mEE &S
(B EE3)
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Notes:

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix C2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange, and the latest released emission
factors of China’s regional power grid basis.

The above emission data does not include the removal of CO,
contributed by recycling of paper.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had 527 (2022: 362) full-time
employees in total. The data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.

Scope 1 — Direct emissions

Scope 1 direct emissions are generated from the
use of the Group’s boilers and motor vehicles. The
Group is taking the proactive measures to reduce
these emissions and these measures are set out in
the section headed “A.1 Emissions” above.

Scope 2 — Indlirect emissions

Scope 2 indirect emissions are generated from the
use of purchased electricity. Measures to reduce
these emissions are set out in the section headed
“A.2 Use of resources” below.

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions

Scope 3 other indirect emissions are generated
from paper consumption and water consumption.
The measures to reduce paper and water
consumption are set out in the section headed “A.2
Use of resources” below.

REREHERBBEDIZ_StREELY U2
IRBIEE TR R E IR AT Rt R A 75 &
ERIBEESTEN(AERABRESTE
EFEREFRLE) - B A E A A (]
WIRIR HEREAME-MEC  BREME
RIERIERIE ) REM M P BRI EH
EEGHY AL -

A LB HBETSERDRREMELN —4
{eix e -

M2023F 12 A31H - AEEHAF527(2022 F -
362%) 2HMEB T - ZBENARGEEMETE
HiE -

BET-BEEH

HWENERENIRERAREEDN
MERMBEES - AEBE IR
BREEAR D Z S ZEE
e E R S TA T HER —&f -

FE 2 — FIEH K

HE 2 MERRRINBENES -
BRB D ZE P ERER T X
[A2ERAM ] —4&0e

FE 3 A M AEHFA

0 [E 3 EL AL P B B AR R OB AR
NFKES - BRR D HKRKKHE
FERMEBEN TXA2ERHMA]

—ff e
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GHG emissions reduction target

To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
GHG emissions as follows:

Environmental indicators Reduction target

R BB E A 1R

REIHE R NEE R ESGEA
AEBREABEREERRET
2WEE BEWT

Baseline year Status

REER BB & ERFE R
GHG emissions Reduce 2% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
BEREBIN 2027 FRTA D 2% 20224 HEITH

(iiij) Sewage discharge

(i) STk

Sewage is generated during the Group’s dyeing
process. Sewage is treated and discharged in
accordance with the Discharge Standard of Water
Pollutant for Dyeing and Finishing of Textile
Industry (<% 8 2 B T 2 7K)5 2 H MR %)).

Measures to reduce hazardous substance in the

REBMRAERBETEELITK
HARBHBRBIENGRY
BEMUR ) BRI R BE TR BE K - B A
BAORBEBIETIELBKNES
WEMREREN EXTATHR] —
B o TR A KB ASKBERF

sewage generated during the dyeing process are 15 :
set out in the section headed “A.1 Emissions”
above. The table below sets forth details of the
Group’s sewage discharge:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
HZE2023F HZE2022F
12A31H1E 12A3181k
FE FE
Sewage discharge Unit Intensity Intensity
S5 IR BERR B RE 7R
CODcr Mag/L 21.99 26.00
CODcr z25%n/7
Ammonia nitrogen Mag/L 2.59 2.00
an 25,/7
Total nitrogen Mag/L 3.9 3.15
AR =25,/ 7
Sewage discharge reduction target ST BER 1R

To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
sewage discharge as follows:

Environmental indicators

REFHE R RSB A ESGAER
REERE R)5KF MR EAE(E
WER RRMT

Reduction target

Baseline year Status

BRIRER WEEE ERFE AR
Sewage discharge Reduce 2% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
VRIS 7917 2027 F R A 2% 2022 HEATH

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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(iv) EEREZERY

(iv) Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

Hazardous waste of the Group includes waste
mineral oil, effluent and packaging materials
contaminated by dye. Non-hazardous waste of the
Group includes residual coal, sludge, paper and
packaging materials.

Apart from the above air pollutants and sewage
treatments, the Group has adopted practices in
relation to the separation, collection, storage
and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste in order to minimise environmental
impact. In particular, the Group has engaged
external service providers qualified by the relevant
environmental authorities of the PRC government
for (i) purification, transportation and disposal
of the sludge generated from waste water; and
(i) collection and disposal of the residual coal
produced from coal-burning boiler for further
recycling purpose.

The Group also adopted certain measures in
relation to consumption of paper and packaging
products including:

o Make use of computer system for
general transaction notification and data
transmission;

o Use both sides of paper as much as possible;

o Dispose of waste packaging boxes as
recyclable waste; and

o Increase the use of recycled paper.

During the two years ended 31 December 2023,
the Group did not receive any complaints or
warnings on disposal of its hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

AEBNBEZEEYEERERY
H B RAERELT R BEM Y
AEBNEZBEEYEEEER
A R R BEME -

B L z= S5 ) KOs K BRIR S
AEBEERDRAEBESREEER
OB KR REREENER
UNEAREEHRDHRENTE -
LER  ARECEFRETBEEBM
BRARE T E BFIR A w5 AR AR
HERERO) R BRREERE
IKEERSR: RMVREREE
B F AP R SRR E A B R K
LAHE — 2RI A

REB TR R R BREMBER
BE TR 2%

e FHAEMAMET RIS
WA BIREE
o HUBLEMEEA

s BEEaKMEAEUKESR
MEE R

o IEIN{EFABIURAR o
H ZE2023F12 A31 8 1F /& E4F

B AEBHARRIERNERER
BERBEBERYNRFLES -
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BEREZERY A EIE

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste reduction
target

AR ER AREBMESGE R
AEEARATEABEEREZEEY
BERETE(LHEZ BEBOT

To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
hazardous and non-hazardous waste as follows:

Environmental indicators

Reduction target Baseline year Status

REREE B E ERFE R

Hazardous and Reduce 2% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
non-hazardous waste

BEERBEEEY 2027 F R 2% 2022 F HITH

The table below sets forth details of hazardous TRV AEENEERBEEEE

and non-hazardous waste of the Group: MEEIE
For the For the
year ended year ended
Types of hazardous and 31 December 31 December
non-hazardous waste Unit 2023 2022
BZ2023F HE20224
12A31H 1t 12HA3181E
FEREEEEYESR B FE FE
Waste mineral oil tonnes - 0.69
FETE 1) g
Effluent tonnes 0.35 0.41
5K 7]
Packaging materials contaminated tonnes - 0.58
by dye 158
BARS RN BEME
Residual coal tonnes 681.53 387.55
BERR s
Sludge tonnes 501.32 664.83
75 s
Paper and packaging materials tonnes - 200.00
MR R BEM B 148
Total waste tonnes 1,183.20 1,254.06
BEEY 7]
Intensity tonnes/employee 2.25 3.46
mE WES
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A.2 Use of resources

The Group strives to minimise the impact of its business
operations on the environment by adopting measures to
conserve energy during the manufacturing and dyeing.
Such measures include practices to limit electricity
and water wastage, guidelines on permitted usage of
electronic equipment by employees and utilisation of
equipment which is energy-efficient.

Energy management

The Group actively implements the concept of energy
saving, emission reduction, and maintain efficient
use of resources through following the methods and
measures for energy saving. Through practicing active
management control in its operations, the Group strives
to prevent pollution by using environmentally friendly
materials, producing green products, and implementing
technological innovations. The Group has also
implemented strategies to reduce the consumption of
petrol and diesel (see section headed “A.1 Emissions”)
and achieve electricity conservation and efficient
use of electricity. The strategies to achieve electricity
conservation and efficient use of electricity are as
follows:

° Conserve electricity and turn off unnecessary
lighting power;

e Minimise energy consumption when equipment is
not in production;

e Avoid premature start-up of equipment and idling
of equipment; and

e Assure the cooling effect of air conditioning
equipment by proper maintenance.

A2 ERAA

AEBBBRREBENEERREBR
TEIRIBEIR - BB EXHELHIRR
MY ERERE - ARERERERHIK
BREMNEN BIBEEREFRE
B35 5] A Ko i FR B RE AR A ©

BEREE

AEBEBEGERBRERENED BB
BRI RENITDEME I - RIFEIR
MBEMAA - BREELTETERN
EEES  AEREHNBEBERRRY
B AERCEMMEBKRMAIR - U
PrLE)5 2 - NEE TR E HER B SAR AT
R SOHEFE (B2 A BEM] —80)
MERSHHAELSRBENER - F
HERMOAERSHAENRENOT

o HHWAE BFTBENKRBER:

© RBTEERBRRDERE:

e RBELBFRIRBNMRBES

§53

o HEARBETEHENEE  BR
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The table below sets forth details of energy

consumption of the Group:
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TERED A E ) REIROBFE RS

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
Types of energy consumption Unit 2023 2022
HZE2023F HZE2022F
12A318 L 12A3181E
BERHFEES B FE FE
Direct energy consumption
HIELRER
— Petrol and diesel litre 48,950 40,600
— T RS 7
Intensity litre/employee 92.88 112.15
RE #EE
Indirect energy consumption
IR E T
— Purchased electricity kilowatt hours 14,662,020 15,093,880
—SMNEE S F R B
Intensity kilowatt hours/employee 27,821.67 41,695.80
RE TRE EE
Water management FKERE

The Group consumes water during its production
process and for office use. In addition to the aforesaid
measures related to the discharge of sewage, the Group
also encourages all employees to develop a habit of

BB AT EKEE I

conscious water use and implements the following

water-savi Ng measures:

AEEELEBRIED R QR EIHEFK
B b S BREME IS - REE TR
SEEEEEENBEHKNEE A

e Formulate specific guidelines and measures for o RIBAKKRE - HIFTABHEL

water conservation based on the characteristics of
water consumption; and

FKIE S| FIE#E - K&

e Inspect and maintain water storage, distribution, o EHHEIK - BIKKRAKRMETT
and consumption facilities regularly, and promptly mE R AEE - BIREE R ER

solve problems identified to prevent wastage of

water resources.

During the two years ended 31 December 2023, the
Group did not encounter any issues in water sourcing.
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The table below sets forth details of water consumption
of the Group:

TRINE AR KB RKFS

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

Unit 2023 2022

H%E20235 HZE20224F

12A3181 1283181k

B FE FE

Water tonnes 365,579 206,879

AKX 148

Intensity tonnes/employee 693.70 571.49

BE wEE
A.3 The environment and natural resources RERARER

The Group recognises its responsibility to minimise
the negative environmental impacts arising from its
business operations and it is committed to achieving
the goal of environmental sustainability. The Group
regularly assesses the environmental risks of its business
operations, adopts preventive measures to reduce
risks, and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The significant impact of activities of the
Group on the environment and the actions taken to
manage them are detailed in the sections headed “A.1
Emissions” and “A.2 Use of resources”.

A.4 Climate change

Climate change is one of the greatest threats the
world has ever faced. The Group acknowledges its
responsibility to implement strategies to reduce carbon
emissions and mitigate climate change. Management
of the Group has set targets to reduce emissions from
business operations and it also regularly monitors and
identifies climate change risk that is relevant to the
Group’s business operations. The climate-related risks
can be divided into two major categories: (i) risks related
to the transition to a lower-carbon economy and (ii)
risks related to the physical impacts of climate change.

(i) Transition risks

Transitioning to a lower-carbon economy may
entail extensive policy, legal, technology, and
market changes to address mitigation and
adaptation requirements related to climate
change. Depending on the nature, speed, and
focus of these changes, transition risks may
pose varying levels of financial and reputational

A4

AEBEBRINEEEKEARBELHE
EMEFAERRRZERERE LXK
ARBRREAFEUENBEER - AEH
EHRHEEERELERNREER -
BREXIE B3 15 3t P 1K o e 6 i R 78 7 4 B8
ERRAR - AREEBHREMNEKR
FELREEAHEFECRRNITEHRN
[ANBER RTA2 RN A ZanaF o

RAIREZME

RIE R 2IE L AREBAN & AR
Br— AEEHBBEEEERD K
FM R R ERIERECRE AEEE

BECELRDERLEEEHNDE
1 TR E B YE M Rl B AR R B TS E
EHENRESCRR - BRIERBEN
[ B2 AT LA 93 7 W KR ¢ (i) B 1) 4K ik 0 O
Lﬁﬁ@mﬂ - R (i) BERRE B A )

Braa@EaERE -

() BEBEEE

WTEEEH?&‘E@%@W@“%\%%‘EE’JE&

R BIMEWSEE - LR
/?%éﬁiﬁﬂszbﬁﬁﬁﬁ']i&%#&k_ﬁgzz
R BFZELICHEE  FER
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risk to the Group. Policy actions around climate
change could continue to evolve. Transition risks
related to policy change include any risk that the
environmental laws and regulations in China may
be amended from time to time and changes in
those laws and regulations may cause us to incur
additional costs in order to comply with the more
stringent rules.

(i)  Physical risks

Physical risks may have financial implications for
the Group, such as direct damage to assets and
indirect impacts from supply chain disruption. The
Group's financial performance may be affected
by changes in water availability, sourcing, and
quality, or extreme temperature changes affecting
the premises, operations, supply chain, transport
needs, and employee safety. During the two
years ended 31 December 2023, the Group did
not encounter any difficulty in water availability,
sourcing and quality, and it did not encounter
any extreme temperature changes affecting the
premises, operations, supply chain, transport
needs, and employee safety that materially and
adversely affecting business operation. The
management will continue to assess and manage
the climate-related risks posed to the Group in the
future.

B. SOCIAL

B.1 Employment and labour practices

Employees are one of the Group’s important assets. The
Group provides a safe, fair and harmonious working
environment for its employees. By upholding values of
trust, respect and compassion, the Group believes that
it will boost employees’ sense of belonging and retain
top talents.

The Group has a recruitment policy in place. New
employees are recruited according to business needs
and upon request from relevant departments. The
Group generally recruits its workforce through online
platforms, regional job fairs and referrals by existing
employees. The candidates will be examined based
on their relevant experiences, skills, knowledge, and
integrity. According to the recruitment policy, the
Group encourages its employees to refer potential
candidates, rewards would be given if the candidates
are successfully employed.
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Each employee of the Group will receive an employee
handbook which stipulates the rights and obligations
of them. Basic rules such as dormitory rules, canteen
management rules, factory access rules and resignation
procedures will be included in the handbook and allow
the employees to have constant references.

The Group also regularly reviews and updates its
employment policy to ensure the applicability of its
terms and condition and compliance with the latest
labour laws and regulations. During the two years
ended 31 December 2023, the Group complied with
the relevant labour laws and regulations and did not
experience any significant labour disputes or any
disruption to business operations due to labour disputes.
In addition, the Group did not experience any difficulties
in the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group’s employees are generally remunerated by
way of fixed salary. The Group utilises an appraisal
system for its employees and considers the appraisal
results of individual employees when conducting their
salary review and determining the amounts of bonuses.
The team manager, person-in-charge of the companies
and human resources department will be responsible
for conducting performance appraisal. The Group's
employees are also entitled to a number of subsidies,
including but not limited to job-nature based subsidy,
performance-based bonus, share options and paid
leave.

During the two years ended 31 December 2023, the
Group made timely and adequate contributions to social
insurance and housing provident fund for its qualified
employees in the PRC; and mandatory provident fund
for its employees in Hong Kong, in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations.
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Labour standards

The Group’s recruitment policy sets out its recruitment
procedures and standard. The Group strictly follows and
regularly reviews such policy. The Group would carry
out background checks to authenticate information
provided by job applicants to confirm that they are
at least 18 years old. During the two years ended
31 December 2023, the Group did not have non-
compliance in relation to laws and regulations regarding
prevention of child and forced labour. The Group also
ensures that the working hours of its employees are
reasonable and comply with the relevant laws and
regulations and its employees would have sufficient rest
periods.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for employees
in respect of recruitment, job advancement, training
and development, etc. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition, disability,
gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation, political status,
age and any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. Employees shall not act in discriminatory
manner or they can be subject to disciplinary actions.

(i)  Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.
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(ii)

Employee health and safety

The Group’s principal raw materials used in the
provision of dyeing service are colouring dyes
and additives. Although they are not hazardous
chemicals as defined under the Catalog of
Hazardous Chemicals (2015) ({fz 1t 2 % B
#£(2015) k%)), they can cause accidents and/
or adverse impact on the environment unless
they are properly stored and handled. In order to
ensure the safe storage of the dyes and additives
and to minimise the risk of the occurrences of
any accidents, the Group has adopted certain
measures in relation to the storage and handling
of dyes and additives including:

e Storage facilities for dyes and additives must
be (i) in specialised space or storage rooms;
(i) managed by designated personnel; (iii)
labelled clearly; and (iv) kitted with sufficient
fire safety equipment;

o Personnel and departments which handle
different dyes and additives must strictly
comply with the relevant management
regulations, operational procedures and fire
safety guidelines; and

o Specialised containers used for the storage
of dyes and additives must be labelled
accordingly.

The Group has established a series of safety
guidelines, rules and procedures for different
aspects of its production activities, including fire
safety, operation safety, warehouse safety, work
related injuries and emergency and evacuation
procedures to promote occupational health and
safety and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Also, the Group provides
suitable and necessary protection equipment to its
employees, i.e., earplugs, protective suits and mask
to ensure their safety during work. Furthermore,
the Group will inspect its production facilities from
time to time in order to ensure that such facilities
are safe for use.

(ii)
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(i)

During the two years ended 31 December 2023,
the Group complied in all material respects with
relevant laws and regulations relating to health
and work safety and the Group did not record any
material accidents. The Group was not involved in
any material violations of health and safety laws
or regulations and it was not subject to material
litigations, claims, administrative sanctions or
penalties with regard to work safety and labour
related issues. There were also no work-related
fatalities or serious injuries, and no days were lost
due to work injury for the three years ended 31
December 2023.

Development and training

In order to increase the overall competitiveness
of workforce, the Group strives to ensure that its
employees are equipped with the required skill
and safety knowledge when performing their
duties. It has been the Group’s policy to provide
all-round training to its employees. Usually it
includes induction training with regard to factory
rules, production flow and use of machineries
which is held by manager or director; on-board
training on the usage of machines and safety
procedures required by its experienced senior staff
for one to two months; and sometimes education
opportunities depending on the job function of
the employees.

The Group will also arrange management skills
training to its potential mid-level staffs to increase
their ability on management. Newly recruited
employees are required to attend a safety training
course so that they can be familiarised with
the safety standards which they are required to
meet during production and in their handling of
production equipment. The Group will also hold
events occasionally for its employees or allow its
employees to join the trade fairs or seminars in
difference provinces or cities, in order for them to
catch up with market trend.
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Set forth below is the number and percentage
of training hours completed by the Group’s

employees by gender and employee category:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

AT BRI R B BRI & 5 A
& B B e SR AR BN PG A

pANsaE

HZE2023F 12831 LLEE

% of training

hours by
employee
Employee category Male Female Total category
RESEHNE D
#9115 31 B B8
EEER S z et B
Training hours  Training hours  Training hours
3 A R 2 3 A R 2 3% ) B By
Senior management 1,043 209 1,252 7.0%
SARETEE
Middle management 1,391 420 1,811 10.1%
hREERE
Other employees 8,062 6,722 14,784 82.9%
HifE 8
Total 10,496 7,351 17,847 100.0%
#st
% of training hours
by gender 58.8% 41.2% 100.0%
B4 B85 89 15 3% E
HENEIL
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BZ£20225 128318 LEE

% of training

hours by
employee
Employee category Male Female Total category
ZEBEMNE D
B A E5 AP 2R
‘mEER 5 % wEEt MWEDH
Training hours Training hours Training hours
s I B s
Senior management 885 198 1,083 7.9%
SARETEE
Middle management 961 293 1,254 9.1%
hREERE
Other employees 7,308 4,145 11,453 83.1%
Hibg g
Total 9,154 4,636 13,790 100.0%
st
% of training hours
by gender 66.4% 33.6% 100.0%
B4 B85 89 15 3% E
RENBE DL
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At 31 December 2023, the Group had 515
(2022: 358) and 12 (2022: 4) full-time employees
employed for the Group’s business operations
in Mainland China and Hong Kong respectively.
The Group had no part-time employees. Set
forth below are the distribution of the Group’s
employees at 31 December 2023 by gender and

(v) (EE S

M2023F12A318  AEED R
B515%4 (20224 : 358 %) 124
(2022F 1 4B) 2B EEXENRSE
NEFRRE NN E B ER -
AEEBERBES - TXEHIE
EEN2023F12 A31 BN R
FBEBIDHEE DM

age group:
Number of
Employees Percentage
Category ol EBEAZ Bt
By gender BRI & D
Male B4 276 52.4%
Female egi 251 47.6%
By age groups RERARSE D
30 or below 30BmEA T 92 17.5%
31-40 31-407% 178 33.8%
41-50 41-50 5% 158 30.0%
51 or above 5158 A F 99 18.7%

The table below sets forth the staff turnover rate
of the Group classified by different categories:

TREHNAEB IR RERRE D H

BERALE:

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BZ2023F HE20224F

12H31H 12A318

Category P L“HEE IEFE
By gender B BIE 5

Male St 4% 29%

Female pegi 4% 35%

By age groups REWRHAR B D

30 or below 30BR AT 1% 35%

31-40 31-407% 10% 16%

41-50 41-50 5% 10% 21%

51 or above 518 A 7% 57%
By geographical region &R @& 5

Mainland China AR A A 4% 32%

Hong Kong BE 38% -

BEZREESRAA

ZE=FFHR
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B.2 Operating practices

(i) Supply chain management

Most of the Group’s major suppliers are based in
Mainland China. The Group relies on the support
from a wide variety of suppliers to provide raw
materials and production equipment to carry out
its business operations. It is very important for the
Group to choose its suppliers carefully as such
decision would directly affect the quality of its
products and services.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
environmental, social and governance principles
that the Group has adopted into the management
of its business operations. In order to ensure that
the components and raw materials meet the
requisite safety and quality standards, the Group
adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection
(including but not limited to whether they provide
high quality raw materials, whether they maintain
a high standard on environmental protection
and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether price is comparable to market rate
and location of their factories) and continuously
monitors existing suppliers on an annual basis,
based on criteria such as product quality, product
defect ratio, delivery punctuality ratio and
responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is
one of the key criteria for us to evaluate the
suppliers. The Group highly recognises suppliers
that can provide international recognitions
and certificates, including but not limited to
(i) 1SO14001, recognising the environmental
management system in place, (ii) Bluesign®
certificate, recognising textile chemical providers
and the products are responsible, sustainable and
is greener textile chemicals for the environment,
or (iii) Standard 100 of OEKO-Tex® recognition,
mainly on product safety, which also attest to
socially and environmentally sound conditions in
production facilities.
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If the aggregate marks of the supplier under the
Group’s annual evaluation (i) equals to or is more
than 80 marks, then the supplier will remain in our
list of approved suppliers for the following year;
(i) less than 80 marks, the Group would ask the
suppliers to make corresponding amendments and
conduct the evaluation again after three months. If
its marks under the evaluation equals to or is more
than 80 marks, the supplier will remain in the list
of approved suppliers for the following year; or (i)
equals to or less than 70 marks, the supplier will
be removed from the list of approved suppliers.

The number of the Group’s suppliers by
geographical locations were as follows:

Geographical locations of the Group’s suppliers
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EEE ()VER8D r AEEE
TR EEE L AENRE W=
EABBIETS - MEEFETS
DERHSH80D 1 FE ok F
GRE AN ZEHEEEE ¢ i)
ZRHER70D ZEEFEH
ZERERRESR -

BB ES DA K EHERE
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Number of suppliers
HEBHE

For the year ended
31 December 2023
BZ2023%F
12A3MBLEE

Mainland China
HR A
Hong Kong
5

Cambodia

THE

200

Total
et

203
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*

(i) Product responsibility

Product assurance and recall

The Group believes that its reputation for product
quality, timely delivery and customer service has
contributed significantly to the success of its
business operations.

The Group adopts strict quality control measures
which includes four stages, (i) initial quality check
for raw materials, (i) checking against prototype
of greige fabrics according to the specification
from customers, such as pattern and dimension
of our lace and obtain approval from customers
before bulk production; (iii) inspecting finished
lace against any snagged yarns to ensure the
number of weaving defects is below the agreed
level and (iv) conduct various types of test to
ensure appropriate elasticity of the products. In the
event of anomalies discovered during inspection,
the production staff would instantly report to the
manager of the quality control department or to
the general manager of the Group, so that the
problem can be solved as quickly as possible.

The Group is currently using the total quality
management system which can monitor the
quality of products in an all-rounded respective.
The Group’s quality management system complies
with the standard of GB/T 19001-2016/
ISO9001:2015 Quality Management Systems
Requirements and the Group was awarded a
certificate for the design, and production of warp
knitted lace (ST 45 4C 4R 12 ). Also, the Group fully
complies with domestic industry standards such as
FZ/T 73027-2016 Textile Industry Standard (Warp
Knitted Lace) of the PRC* (HP & A R H AN B 47 4
1TEIZAE (ST EHRTE#2)). The Group has also
been accredited with, among others, ISO
9001:2015 for quality management system for its
design and production of lace and OEKO-TEX®
Confidence in Textiles STANDARD 100, which
shows that the quality of the Group’s products can
meet the international stringent requirements on
product safety. In respect of dyeing services, the
Group has obtained 1SO14001:2015 for its
environmental management system.

For identification purpose only
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The Group also implements a series of repair and
maintenance procedures of its machinery and
equipment. The production team conducts basic
routine checks on machinery and equipment
regularly and detailed checks annually. The
production team maintains detailed record on
repair and maintenance work and the Group has
its our own hardware warehouse to increase the
efficiency of repairing.

During the two years ended 31 December 2023,
the Group did not have material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to product
safety and receive any product return request, nor
had it received any complaint from its customers
on the quality of products, and no customers
made any material warranty claims against the
Group.

Intellectual property rights and privacy protection

To protect its intellectual property rights, the
Group has entered into confidentiality and
noncompete agreements with members of
senior management, employees of the design
and development team and technical support
team and/or other employees who have access
to secrets or confidential information of the
Group. The confidentiality and non-compete
agreements prohibit such members of senior
management and/or the relevant employees from
(i) disclosing confidential information of the Group
such as technology know-how and trade secrets
acquired or generated during the course of their
employment with the Group; and (ii) engaging
in activities and/or business that may potentially
compete with the Group.

The Group has also established appropriate
guidelines for its employees to regulate the use
of personal information, safeguard confidential
information and avoid leakage of customers’ and
suppliers’ privacy.

During the two years ended 31 December
2023, the Group was not aware of any material
infringement of any intellectual property rights nor
material breach of data privacy.
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(iii) Anti-fraud and anti-corruption

The Group has implemented guides, policies
and procedures regarding anti-fraud and anti-
corruption for its employees to follow. A reporting
mechanism is in place for any fraud/corruption
or suspected fraudulent/corruption behaviour.
Any contravention to these guides and policies
identified with solid evidence, the Group will
terminate the engagement with the contravened
parties immediately and if needed, report to
relevant regulatory authorities. The Group also
provides trainings to its employees from time to
time to ensure that they comply and familiar with
the guides, policies and procedures regarding anti-
fraud and anti-corruption.

During the two years ended 31 December 2023,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery and there
was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

Whistleblowing policy

The Group has implemented whistleblowing
policy to provide a well-defined and accessible
channel for reporting fraud, corruption, dishonest
practices, or other similar matters and guidance
on how an investigation would be initiated upon
receiving a complaint. The policy also protects
employees who report fraudulent activities in good
faith and reasonable belief. A whistleblowing
officer is elected to ensure that any reported case
is dealt with in an expedited manner.

Upon receiving the complaint, the Board
decides the method of investigation, which may
involve appointing an external consultant for
assessment. The Board will monitor and review the
effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy from
time to time.
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B3 #ERE

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social responsibility
and allocates resources to satisfy the needs of the
community. In achieving its social corporate goal in
volunteering in the community, the Group has actively
endeavoured in funding the development of less
developed cities in the PRC by making donations to
various charitable organisations occasionally.

During the two years ended 31 December 2023, the
Group focused on environmental protection as well as
cultural and sport promotion. Going forward, the Group
will continue to focus on community needs and increase
its investment in community. The Group has contributed
a reasonable amount of time to environmental
protection and cultural and sport promotion.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders of the
Company the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 4 January 2019. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 13 January 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
provides dyeing services, sale and manufacture of lace as well as
sales of footwear product to its customers. Details of the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW, FUTURE PROSPECT AND
DEVELOPMENT

The review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 and the discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISK FACTORS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The following sets out the principal risks and uncertainties
encountered by the Group in its business operations:

The Group as a dyeing service provider has been categorised
as one of the heavily polluting industries. Any failure to
comply with environmental regulations would expose the
Group to penalties, fines, suspensions or actions in other
forms.

The Group’s business of providing dyeing services has been
categorised as one of the heavily polluting industries and its
operations are subjected to the environmental protection laws
and regulations promulgated by the PRC government authorities.
These laws and regulations require the Group to adopt effective
measures to control and properly dispose of waste water and
other environmental pollutants. The Group could be exposed to
penalties, fines, suspensions or actions in other forms if we fail to
comply with these laws and regulations.
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The Group derives a significant portion of revenue from
several major customers . Failure to retain business
relationships with existing customers or secure new business
may materially affect the Group’s results and financial
performance.

The Group’s revenue is concentrated in several major customers.
The Group mainly provides lace manufacture, dyeing services and
footwear business on an order-by-order basis, there is no assurance
that our business relationship with our customers will continue
in the future. The Group’s results of operations, profitability and
liquidity may be materially and adversely affected if it is unable to
secure new orders from existing customers or fail to procure similar
level of business from new customers on comparable commercial
terms to offset the loss of revenue from existing customers.

The Group’s business depends on a stable and adequate
supply of raw materials and the Group does not enter into
any long-term agreements with suppliers, fluctuation in the
price of raw materials may affect the Group’s cost of sales
and adversely affect business operation and profitability.

Since the Group does not enter into any long-term agreement
with its raw material suppliers, if any interruption, reduction or
termination of the supply of raw materials occurs, or the price of
the raw material increase due to an increase in demand, the Group
has to bear the risk of such fluctuations and may not be able to
shift such risk to its customers.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no significant events which would have a material effect
on the Group after the balance sheet date and up to the date of
this report.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 69.4% (2022: approximately 38.2%) and
approximately 80.3% (2022: approximately 47.6%) of the total
revenue, respectively.

Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2023 accounted
for approximately 31.8% (2022: approximately 29.3%) and
approximately 67.5% (2022: approximately 39.5%) of the total
purchases, respectively.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2023.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good relationships with employees,
customers and suppliers by making frequent communications with
them to understand their needs. The Group provides safe work
environment, competitive remuneration, good welfare benefits
and continuous training for its employees. During the year ended
31 December 2023, there were no material disputes between the
Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Group has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
The Group also complied with (i) the requirements under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") for the disclosure
of information and corporate governance; and (i) the ordinances
relating to occupational safety for the interest of its employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.
Details of such are set out in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 103 to 106. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are set
out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

At 31 December 2023, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB36.9 million (2022: nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
assets pledged as securities.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 24 May 2024 (Friday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 21 May 2024 (Tuesday) to 24
May 2024 (Friday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 20 May
2024 (Monday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 20 May 2024
(Monday).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of this annual report. The distributable reserves
of the Company are set out in note 35(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made donations of RMB100,000 during the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: RMB200,000).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Mingiang

Mr. Larry Stuart Torchin

Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki (appointed on 31 October 2023)
Ms. Jian Xuegen (resigned on 31 October 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chow Kit Ting

Dr. Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin

Mr. Chan Hoi Shan

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing, Mr. Lin
Mingiang and Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the members of the Board and relationship
between members of the Board are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” in this annual report.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Group’s employee benefit expenses and manpower
service expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 (including
the emoluments of the Directors and senior management and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group) are set out in note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. The
emoluments payable to the Directors are determined according
to various factors, including but not limited to their performance,
market conditions and the financial conditions of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no Directors have
waived any emoluments.

DIRECTORS’ LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing, Mr. Larry Stuart Torchin, Dr. Chiu
Kwok Hung, Justin and Mr. Chan Hoi Shan has signed a letter
of appointment with our Company up to a term of three years
commencing from 30 September 2022. Each of Mr. Lin Mingiang
and Mr. Chow Kit Ting has signed a letter of appointment with
our Company up to a term of three years commencing from 16
December 2020 and Mr. Chow Kit Ting renewed his appointment
on 30 September 2022. Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki has signed a letter of
appointment with our Company up to a term of three years
commencing from 31 October 2023. These appointments may
be terminated in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment or
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Laws of
the Cayman Islands) which he/she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 December 2023, interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or have been entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

(i) Interest in the ordinary shares of the

EERESITRAERAQARE
AHEEZENRD - HEROGRE
EENEERAR

B2023F 128318 ARRIZEZRREITEHA
BRARBKEFMAEEE (FERESHNMPE
IRBIEXVER) R - MR REEERES
EREZELFNHEKRMNEXVIFETIRSD A
AN RBRIAESSAR (BEREESRR
HE GO B BIEXHEEESRBHEE WD LK
B) HIRIEE S R EEPIE 352 GBH AR R A]
FENELMOES AR  REZEESTRA
MERABI RS ABNT

() RERRBEBERNER

Company
Percentage of
Number of shareholding in
shares held the Company
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (Approximate)
BFEH RADRH
BB BREDL
EEpE B REEHEE (KizE1) (BL49)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation and 781,000,000 (L) 61.98%
beneficial owner
BB EAE (HE2) R EEEREERER A
Mr. Lin Mingiang (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation and 50,400,000 (L) 4.00%
interest held jointly with other persons
MR A& (B 7E3) Ry EE S
EH M AT HRAFAER
Ms. Tsoi Lam Ki Beneficial owner 2,735,000 (L) 0.22%
B L EmlEAA

BEZREEERAE — T _=FFK
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(ii) Inte

FEEHE

rest in the ordinary shares of an

associated corporation

(i) REBEZEEERNER

Percentage of
shareholding in

Number of  the associated

Name of associated Capacity/nature shares held corporation

Name of Director corporation of interest (Note 1) (Approximate)
BEH RAEBEERN

ROEE BREDL

BEEns HEEE A B EEMER (Kizt1) (BL47)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing Glorious Way Investments Beneficial owner (L) 100%

Limited (“Glorious Way")

BB KEREBRAF(TRE]) E=mEEA
Notes:

1.

2.

The letter “L" denotes long position of the shares.

Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing (i) directly and beneficially holds 1.98% of
the shares of the Company; and (ii) beneficially owns 100% of
the issued shares of Glorious Way, which in turn holds 60.00%
of the shares of the Company. Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing is a director
of Glorious Way. Therefore, Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing is deemed,
or taken to be interested in the shares of the Company held
by Glorious Way for the purpose of the SFO and in aggregate
holds 61.98% of the shares of the Company.

These shares are held by Deyong Investment Co., Ltd (“Deyong
Investment”). Deyong Investment is an investment holding
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI")
and is owned by Mr. Lin Mingiang, as to 60%. Mr. Lin
Mingiang is a director of Deyong Investment. Therefore, Mr. Lin
Mingiang is deemed, or taken, to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Deyong Investment for the purposes of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had registered any interests or short positions in any

shares and

underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company

or any associated corporations at 31 December 2023, as recorded

in the regi

ster required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of
the Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, at 31 December 2023, the
following corporation/persons (other than the interests of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares which fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

EERERODVEREENZH

BRAFmMAAHESEI  RNEE20235F12HA31H
FFEREEAFHRBEAOTMAKRE  BERAR
ARIEMEEREES BNRBAREKF T
AR EREARR AR DR EEEMESF =S
MR BENREBITETMZERER  BARA] -
HAER A R s T B A R R S T W 2k
BEARARES BB AR A S EMEAmER
B KEBESH (RIEEEE) MESHE -

FERREHEMATRAERTRG
REBEROTEANEER KR

BEEH  A2023E 124318 - THLEE A
T(EXFEENARRESIESTHAEER
oM EB A RR B BITRMDF 5% A ERERE
BRIEFES LB EBFRHIEXVIBE2RIDIKEX
ARANRAE LB ZPTIE TR KALARRRIRIEZE
AR HAE G E 336 15 BFERNE LM

Percentage of
Number of shareholding in

shares held the Company

Name Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (Approximate)

P NN

BHER ERBESL

HE BB B ERHE (Htez1) (BE#)

Glorious Way (Note 2) Beneficial owner 756,000,000 (L) 60.00%

1B (H1E2) ExEAA 756,000,000 (L) 60.00%

Ms. Wu Chor Har (Note 3) Interest of spouse 781,000,000 (L) 61.98%

M E L (HiE3) B (8 1 & 781,000,000 (L) 61.98%
Notes: et

1. The letter “L" denotes long position of the shares.

2. Glorious Way is an investment holding company incorporated in the
BVI and is wholly owned by Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing.

1. [LIRRZBALTRBEMEE -

2. BEANEBRARSEMRIHEEERAT
MBS AEREHE -

BEZREBERAE — T =55
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3. Ms. Wu Chor Har is the spouse of Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing. Therefore, Ms.
Wu Chor Har is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares
of the Company which Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing is interested in for the
purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2023, the Company has
not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his/her connected entity has or had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors, controlling shareholders or any of their
respective associates has engaged in or has any interest in any
business that competes or may compete with the business of the
Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the Group during
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 16 December 2020 (the “Adoption
Date”), which become effective on 13 January 2021.

()

(i)

Purpose of Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants; and to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

Who may join and basis of eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-
time), Director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any
substantial shareholder of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or
service provider of the Group, options to subscribe at a price
calculated in accordance with paragraph (iii) below for such
number of shares as it may determine in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. The basis of eligibility of
any participant to the grant of any option shall be determined
by the Board (or as the case may be, the independent non-
executive Directors) from time to time on the basis of his/her
contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.

(iii) Exercise price of share option

The exercise price of share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and shall be at least highest of: (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant of the
option.

(iv) Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
our Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HKD1.00.

BRRERTE

AN/N

AIR2020F 12 816 8 (&AM B H ) B4

R —TEERER S ((BRETE]) - Er2021
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(v) Maximum number of shares that may be

issued

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company must not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of our Company if this will result in such
30% limit being exceeded.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date (i.e. 126,000,000
shares) unless approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by obtaining approval of the Company’s shareholders
in general meeting provided that the total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit. Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the refreshed 10%
limit. A circular must be sent to the Company’s shareholders
containing the information as required under the Listing Rules
in this regard.

(vi) Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in the manner stipulated in the Listing Rules, the
maximum entitlement for each eligible participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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(vii) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

(viii) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on the Adoption Date and shall expire
at the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless terminated
earlier by our Shareholders in general meeting. At 31
December 2023, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately six years and 11.5 months.

For further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

As of 31 December 2023 and the date of this annual report,
no share options had been granted or agreed to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme. As a result, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
as of the date of this annual report was 126,000,000,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as of the Adoption Date.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
related to office rental payments of the Group under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules entered by the Group with World Mart Limited
(AEREA R A B)), during the Reporting Period with a term of one
year, were exempted from reporting, disclosure and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details
were disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 10
July 2023, 31 July 2023, 14 August 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 17 August 2023, the Company entered into the
framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”) with Mr. Tsoi,
pursuant to which Mr. Tsoi's associated companies (“Associated
Companies”) shall manufacture and supply various footwear
to the Group (”Continuing Connected Transactions”). The
transaction contemplated under the Framework Agreement
was subsequently approved by the independent Shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2023.
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The annual caps in respect of the purchase under the Framework
Agreement were set at HK$78.2 million, HK$164.2 million
and HK$172.5 million for the period from six months ending
31 December 2023, each of the two financial years ending 31
December 2024 and 2025 respectively. The aggregate amounts
for the purchase amount under the Framework Agreement to
Associated Companies during the year ended 31 December 2023
was HK$38,561,000 which did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$78.2 million as set for such financial year.

Since Mr. Tsoi is a substantial shareholder of the Company, and the
Associated Companies are all associates of Mr. Tsoi, each of Mr.
Tsoi and the Associated Companies is a connected person of the
Company and the transactions contemplated under the Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Framework Agreement are subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the Continuing Connected
Transactions and have confirmed that the Continuing Connected
Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the above Continuing Connected
Transactions and the auditor has reported its conclusion on
these procedures to the Board, confirming the matters set out
in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor of the Company
was engaged to report on the above Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Continuing
Connected Transactions mentioned above, none of these related
party transactions are connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as of the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF AUDITED ANNUAL RESULTS

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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RPHABHNGAEM B REM T4 - BRA LR K
WIBEBRBRS  MEZSHEB IS AEHET
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ERARTLEEARRORBERNEFR 0%
EAWE] 8 -
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the Reporting
Period.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM IPO

Details of the use of the proceeds from IPO are set out on page 15
of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as auditor of the Company and
Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company to
fill the casual vacancy, both with effect from 4 December 2023.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited.
Mazars CPA Limited will retire and a resolution for re-appointment
of Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2024 AGM. Save as disclosed above, there has
been no other change in the auditor of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TN Iz B R

mazZars

To the members of

STAR SHINE HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

(formerly known as Deyun Holding Ltd.)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Star
Shine Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Deyun Holding
Ltd.) (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 103 to 188, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group at 31 December
2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA" ) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MAzARs CPA LIMITED
PERR (BB etiiskraRAE

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BRETABBEB18HPIRESL2E
Tel B ¢ (852) 2909 5555

Fax {2 : (852) 2810 0032

Email BEB : info@mazars.hk

Website #84F : www.mazars.hk

HEERBREBERARKRE
(517 A Deyun Holding Ltd.)
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=
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BN Z AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRETEH

RESER

Fl%t** EEEREBERMANEXZHE  RAEX
HEEMBRRNBIR/EENEH BLF

IE;&E?MF?% AERBGAMBHRRAREAEZRE

EITRIZR - R TS ELFTHEREHEBNER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNESNNEERARENER

Revenue recognition for manufacturing of lace, provision of dyeing services and sales of shoes

BERER  RUEIBERERFCSHBRZRR
Refer to Notes 2 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

2t E B HEAE2R5 -

The Group enters into services/sales agreement with each customer
for the manufacturing of lace, provision of dyeing services and sales
of shoes and generated revenue of approximately RMB317,353,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

EEEREFIIVIRG,SHE WS ARELE  RELER
i"l&fﬁ‘ﬂi@ %JENBEQHNE&ETFM&& AR
317,353,000 7T ©

The Group recognises revenue from manufacturing of lace and
provision of dyeing services over the period of the contract using the
input method. For contracts in progress at the end of the reporting
period, the Group applies a percentage of completion to the
contracted price and the percentage is determined with reference to
the actual costs incurred and the total estimated costs on completion
for the services.

BEEEFEARARAERNEG QO AERRRETE IR HAERE
WA - EREBRREEZEOMNE - ESEYHANERKAT
ITEDL  MZEDLDHESECEENTENA &R T
BIEET RN RFRRETE ©
The Group recognises revenue from sales of shoes at a point in
time when the control of the products has transferred, being when
the Group has delivered the products to the customers, and the
customers have full discretion over the products.

EEBRERENRCEERN A EXECKERINER
MEFPHEMTERARERSEIHEEBNWA -

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Our key audit procedures, among others, included:

BPWRERES R T2

(@) obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key internal
controls in relation to the revenue recognition;

() TEWRIAFM BEEEAWARRE@NER
MEBIE BB ER AT~ B RUETTRR ¢

(b) discussing with the management of the Group
and evaluating whether the method used by
the management of the Group to estimate
revenue in relation to contracts in progress at
the reporting period end is reasonable;

by 8 BEEEEEENBLNE SE5£EEE
RBEMREFERZEORSEMERANTT
FERERE:

(c) assessing the management’s identification of
performance obligations and the recognition
of revenue by inspecting the key customers
contracts and with reference to our
understanding of the Group’s business;

(0 BEREIBZEEPANILZ2ELMY BEH
BEBOTH FHELERNBEBORER
PR s -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEH

EREETTEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESNNEERARENER

Revenue recognition for manufacturing of lace, provision of dyeing services and sales of shoes (Continued)

RERE RUXEREREEHE VSRR ()

Refer to Notes 2 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements. (Continued)

BRHG R BERENZ2R5 - (F)

We identified this area as a key audit matter due to the magnitude
of revenue transactions occurred and revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and may be subject to risk of
manipulation by management/employee to achieve expectations or
targets.

BMREANEZRBREFFE  RARMEENRARZHE
R MAKSEARBENBERERIER . — AFEEREE
/BT REREMN B IR T IARM RS -

(d)

(d)

(e)

(e)

)

®

testing, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recorded during the reporting period to
underlying supporting documents, e.g.
customers contracts, delivery documents and/or
customers’ acknowledgement of sales;

MERARBRSHNERREEXH (MEP
m’J REXMH R,/ REFHERRE) T
LR &S

in respect of revenue from manufacturing of
lace and provision of dyeing services, testing,
on a sample basis, the actual costs incurred
including direct material costs, direct labour
costs and overhead costs to underlying
supporting documents and checking the
calculation of the revenue recognised based on
the contracted prices and the total estimated
cost on completion; and

HRBUETEE MR TR B IRB U S MO
ARBEEEXHTFHNEELBERKA B
BEEDHKAEA BESTRAREERAN
IBZE”/\Z’Jf’ﬁ%&mﬁ}zﬁﬂﬁ.#El’]fﬂzm\w%&ﬂ?
EREEROFETR Rk

in respect of revenue from sales of shoes,
testing, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
from sales of shoes recorded before and after
the reporting period end to delivery documents,
e.g. delivery notes and shipping documents to
determine whether revenue from the sales of
shoes had been recognised in the appropriate
reporting period.

R EEE W - B E R E S (1%
EERKESR) PHRBREHRzAIEZ
& PTEE15 iﬁ’iﬁilﬁﬂ’]%m 25 NETER
HERSEEEANEEOME N[ T AER -
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B AZBEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BAEETEE @

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRETEH BEMNEFNMEEREENSE

Impairment assessment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
BREE  ESRERREREREERETMS

Refer to Notes 2, 3, 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRI EBHREANT2 3 4K20°

At 31 December 2023, the net carrying amounts of contract assets  Our key audit procedures, among others, included:
and trade and bill receivables were approximately RMB6,854,000

and RMB78,185,000, respectively (after the loss allowance for IR BIZFELE

expected credit loss (“"ECL"”) of approximately RMB52,000 and

RMB3,372,000, respectively). (@) obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
internal control and assessment processes for

R2023F12A310  GHNEERE S RWGFIERERZENER impairment assessment of contract assets, trade

HFED R4 A AR 6,854,000 7T M AR 78,185,000 7T (2 41 and bills receivables;

RIEHEEEE (HHREEER] BE RO AR S52,0007T

& ARH3,372,0007T) ° @ 7T® ESEEREEMANEE EBEIREK
FRIE Ko JRE W SR A5ORUE BT 1k &) P P BRI R A

The management of the Group applied the simplified approach (=52

in accordance with HKFRS 9 to measure ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all contract assets, trade and bills (b) assessing the reasonableness of the ECL

receivables. In measuring the credit loss rates, the management of methodology and the use of forward-looking
the Group assesses whether there are any significant changes in information applied by the management of the
payment profiles and risk of default, and takes into consideration Group in determining the loss allowance for
the current and forward-looking information, to adjust the expected ECL;

losses rates.
by FfH ESBEEREEAETCHEIAGEEBER

EXBEREREEBMBHRELMEIREABI I EFER BEMEANEREEBRIARAELE
HEERE BETUMAEHNEE BHRUGARBRRERE HRELAE:

RAEEMERCEEBERE -SF2EEEEXR . E£EEHE
EBFmETRBEARENRBRELGBEEMNERES WEEEZA KL () testing and assessing, on a sample basis,

RIEMER - AR AEEEEX - whether the loss allowance for ECL was
properly supported by considering the debtors’

We identified the impairment assessment of contract assets, trade ageing analysis, settlement records and

and bills receivables as a key audit matter due to the significance available forward-looking information; and

of the amounts involved, and the use of judgement and estimation

made by the management of the Group. (0 BBREEBEBANERSNT  HHLHERR
BRRTEEER MR R EEREE

HASENEE B2 RIFIAREYWRIBENRE L ETE R FIEBEEREEAEENFF R

REGFE ARMSEHEAN B EXEERBEEFTEME A

B R fhEt e (d) considering the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure in respect of the impairment
assessment.

d ZE EfEEREMHMETENEERESRED
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B AZBEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BAEETEE @

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRETEH BEMNEFNMEEREENSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
ME - BERRBUREAREENREN G

Refer to Notes 2, 4, 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRMGEEBIRENT2 4K 14 -

At 31 December 2023, the net carrying amounts of property, plant  Our key audit procedures, among others, included:
and equipment of approximately RMB122,014,000 and right-of-

use assets of approximately RMB6,326,000, respectively, which IR B IZFEE

represented about 99.6% of the total non-current assets of the

Group. (@ inquiring the management of the Group,

understanding and evaluating the internal
MR2023F12A318 - WE BEEREKEARERAEEENR control on their determination of impairment
HFED RI& A AR 122,014,0007T & A R #6,326,0007C - indications and their method used for the
1 BEEIERHEEELTENI.6% ° impairment assessment;

In view of continuous drop in revenue in respect of the (a) AR SEBMEIRE - 7Y TG HERE
manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing services (the “Lace BV ER A I AR (E AT Al 7 A RO R 2B BE4E
and Dyeing Business”) during the recent years, the management

of the Group identified the existence of an impairment indication (b) comparing cash flow projection to supporting

on the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of evidence, such as approved budgets, and
the Lace and Dyeing Business (the “Non-current Assets”). The evaluating the reasonableness of these budgets
management of the Group engaged an independent professional with reference to the past performance and our
valuer to assess the recoverable amount of the Non-current Assets, knowledge of the business;

which is determined based on the value-in-use of the Lace and
Dyeing Business to which the Non-current Assets relate. The (b) IR S RSB N EEN EBEEHYEHE

impairment assessment involves the management’s estimates in TR T2RBAXERBMEEBNT
certain areas including the discount rate and the underlying cash o R EEENAEM

flow projection based on the future market supply and demand
conditions. Any changes in the management’s estimates may result (c) performing a sensitivity analysis for the key

in significant financial impact to the Group. assumptions, such as projected revenue and

evaluating the reasonableness of key inputs
ERINTEREIENIEHAERE ((TEREBERK]) la and assumptions used by the management of
BETE BESHTEECHAITCERIAEEBRNODE & the Group, including discount rate;

FhamhERZEEE ((HAFRRBEE) LRBETE - &
SEEREZRE - LBUEXGEMTGEBEERDEENER (o HEARASHRBRETHRIZMEIN - A

BE  WHRFRABEIERDEENTENAEEE 2 KOS Afh EREEHEEERNBEREAREBRR
RME - RENFEFRERBEHE T TENMGE  BREBRER (BREBAR)WAENE

ERARKMSESGORWBER SRR - 2 E At EmeE
EHr Y BEREENBEAVBTE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRBITER

EREETTEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB NAEEREENSER

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

M BERREUREREEELRERT G ()

Refer to Notes 2, 4, 14 to the consolidated financial statements. (Continued)

BFRHGEHERENZ2 4R 14 (8)

As set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Group concluded that the recoverable amount
of the Lace and Dyeing Business was lower than the carrying amount
of the Non-current Assets and impairment loss of approximately
RMB7,382,000 was recognised in the property, plant and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUMGAMBREM T 14T EEETEERALERSE
BEBMNARECERRABEERDEENEREDE  TREE
2023F 12 ATHIEFERYE  BEMKEFERBEEBEN
AR 7,382,000 7T °

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter due to
the significance of balance, combined with the judgements and
estimations involved in the management’s impairment assessment.

EEEERERET S KA R -

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023

(d)

(d)

(e)

(e)

evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
valuer;

AR B EAEMNEE N  BHORFEE:
understanding the independent professional
valuer’s methodology adopted on the
estimation of recoverable amount and the key

inputs used, and assessing whether they are
reasonable and supportable;

T RRYE L F R A (B AN E A B & B A
REAMDERMERMERE AR X
HEEREERRE

assessing the reasonableness of the
management’s impairment assessment
accordance with the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards; and

REBRITEENNENR  FEEEBRE
AEEEEE &

considering the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements.

2R ESEESAMBERRTOBERS
e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in this annual report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Htfz 8
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Lam Kwok Sun
Practising Certificate number: P08281
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Consolidated Income Statement
A W

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 2023 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 FF
{bE=s ARET AREBFTT
Revenue Uz 5 317,353 134,155
Cost of sales SHE AR (293,507) (137,966)
Gross profit/(loss) ER,(8) 23,846 (3,811)
Other income HAm g A 7 4,401 5,369
Other gains, net H i W 25 5 58 8 2,457 4,175
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HRAX 6 (16,160) (1,663)
Administrative expenses THAX 6 (17,782) (14,388)
Net reversal of/(provision for) loss allowance #[al /" (5112) & B0 E&E &
on financial assets and contract assets BRHEBEEBEREFSE 6 1 (782)
Impairment loss on property, plant mE - BE R
and equipment REREEE 14 (7,382) -
Operating loss REEE (10,619) (11,100)
Finance income B WA 10 2,306 2,338
Finance costs BhE A AR 10 (352) 1)
Finance income, net BB AFEE 1,954 2,327
Loss before income tax BRATEHRATER (8,665) (8,773)
Income tax expenses FRigBRX 11 (1,426) (164)
Loss for the year attributable AATEE AESL
to owners of the Company FAEE (10,091) (8,937)
Loss per share attributable RATEE AESL
to owners of the Company BREE
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EARAR#EE(ARES) 12 (0.80) (0.71)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ArA 2 E WS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 2023 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 %
AR®T ARETF T
Loss for the year FRER (10,091) (8,937)
Other comprehensive income: Hith 2w :
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss HEAEE 7R A H
— Exchange differences on translation of —HREBINEBH
foreign operations EHZER 77 129
Total comprehensive loss for the year KAFEEABMEER
attributable to owners of the Company 2HEEHE (10,014) (8,808)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ra MBI R

At 31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 %
P 5T AR¥T T ARBTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 14 122,014 142,567
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 14 6,326 2,555
Investment property "EME 15 - 281
Intangible assets mLEE 16 452 743
Prepayments TE IR 18 121 25
128,913 146,171
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 6,301 7,955
Contract assets BREE 20 6,854 6,198
Trade and bills receivables B 5 FEUGRIE & B = 4% 20 78,185 6,137
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - Ze Rk
other receivables H fth FE UL SR IE 18 2,944 572
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEYD 21 268,978 187,910
363,262 208,772
Total assets BEELE 492,175 354,943
Equity B
Equity attributable to owners of EREEEA
the Company Eihs
Share capital N 22 10,511 10,511
Reserves G 23 305,373 315,387
Total equity ERBE 315,884 325,898

BEZREESRAA

ZE=FFHR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e AR

At 31 December 2023 /22023412 A31H

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 %
=S AR® T AREF T
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Other payables H e KA 24 1,373 1,425
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 2,528 -
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEEE 27 532 549
4,433 1,974
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables B 5 EN A 28 108,793 10,096
Other payables and accruals Hh FE S 5RIE MR R 24 19,877 11,657
Contract liabilities SERAE 24 220 365
Interest-bearing borrowing B 26 33,440 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 1,355 -
Loan from ultimate holding company BRERARER 29 3,411 -
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTS B E 4,762 4,953
171,858 27,071
Total liabilities BEAE 176,291 29,045
Total equity and liabilities BaRkaEERE 492,175 354,943

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 188 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2024 and signed on its behalf by

Tsoi Wing Sing
BRE
Director

BEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BARSEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 2023 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN

Share Share Other  Statutory  Exchange  Retained Total
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve  earnings equity
Rx  ROEE HbRE  iERE  EXRE  RERN  ER4E

(Note 22)  (Note 23(a))  (Note 23(b))  (Note 23(c))  (Note 23(d))

(Mrsr22)  (WeE23@)  (MEE2300)  (HEE23() (P 23(d)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR AREFR AREBTR AREFT ARBTR ARETE
Balance at 1 January 2023 R023E1A1AHER 10,511 80,081 104,466 19,022 112 111,706 325898
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (10,091)  (10,091)
Other comprehensive income Hitz Al - - - - 77 - 77
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRAH - - - - 77 (10,091) (10,014)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R03F12A31A0ER 10,511 80,081 104,466 19,022 189 101,615 315,884
Balance at 1 January 2022 R20251R1AfEe 10,511 80,081 104,466 19,022 (1) 120,643 334,706
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (8.937) (8.937)
Other comprehensive income ol - - - - 129 - 129
Total comprehensive loss 2EFEAH - - - - 129 (8,937) (8,808)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022512 A31 A& 10,511 80,081 104,466 19,022 112 111,706 325,898
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\/T\/\fﬁf_z //|L£?§

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (£ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 %
{5 AR¥T T ARBTT

Cash flows from operating activities E&FZEHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEMBIRE 31(a) 45,794 14,536
Income tax paid [RENEZECY (1,634) (642)
Interest received 2 HRE 2,306 2,338
Net cash generated from operating KEEEMERS

activities FHE 46,466 16,232
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE#1% - & K& & E (1,453) (10,626)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEEEE (72) -
Prepayment for purchase of property, BEME  WEIEHED

plant and equipment TEfT IR (96) -
Net cash used in investing activities KRERBMAR S FHE (1.621) (10,626)
Cash flows from financing activities BMETBRERE
Inception of borrowings HEVSE 31(d) 33,440 -
Inception of loan from ultimate holding ~ FTEVS &KL AT E R

company 31(d) 3,411 -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE 31(d) (416) -
Interest paid BFE (290) (1)
Net cash from/(used in) financing MEEEFTES(FTA)

activities BHEFEHE 36,145 (11)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBEEZEYEM

equivalents R ] 80,990 5,595
Cash and cash equivalents at BEHIRER

beginning of the reporting period REEEY 187,910 182,294
Effect on exchange rate changes ExemTE 78 21
Cash and cash equivalents at BEHMRRER

end of the reporting period, REZEEY

represented by bank balances MRITHEBRRRS

and cash 21 268,978 187,910

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ST A IS ERR A 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 2023 12 A31 HILFE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Deyun
Holding Ltd.) (the “Company"”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 4 January 2019 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law Cap. 22,
Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is
71 Fort Street, P.O. Box 500, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of
Name issued by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman
Islands on 25 May 2023 and the Certificate of Registration of
Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 13
June 2023, the name of the Company was changed from
Deyun Holding Ltd. to Star Shine Holdings Group Limited
with effect from 25 May 2023.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally engaged in (i) manufacturing of lace and provision
of dyeing services; and (i) footwear business.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Glorious
Way Investments Limited (“Glorious Way”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The ultimate
controlling shareholder is Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise indicated.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

—REHR

FE2F ik & B A R A F (A7 Deyun Holding
Ltd.) (A2 F ) R2019F1 A48 RIEFS
BHERRNE (1961 FE=ZGUEH  £iRE K
B ARASHEFMRLAEREEFRA
Al o AN G FEMPFEE U A 71 Fort Street,
P.O. Box 500, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman Islands ©

BRIEFASESAREMEERERN2023F5 A
ZSHEBEHMEE N RZHEIMERERES
NEIFEMER KN 2023F 6 A 13 8% LT
IBBARBELHIMEE  A2AAH
g1 Deyun Holding Ltd. B RIEE R EEE
[RAF - 82023582584 -

RRAR—FKBREERAR - KRA REN
BAR (FHEIAEE]) TELEONRETE
KRB RS ¢ R (i) EEREF -

ARAEFERR  ARANRKRIERAR R
REBRZES ((RBELHRE]) T
MARKBEREARAR ([RE]) - &KE

HaRBRRAARE (ARE) 27 K&
FEREER BRMARESNEERER
T ([AR¥TR)) -

FEESFBE
2.1 REE%E

FAVBEBRRERREESANLE
((BEREHEAE))BANEEMER
SR ((BBHBH/EER]) (FAEE
REBUBHRELE FEEHEM (&
BERER]D RREZRR)  FER
REAEUARTERAEPINORER
KimEL - R A M MR I BICH XA E
Z LR RN (T E AR ) R o3 5
X o AP BRRERBE L RARELE
w5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2022 consolidated financial
statements. The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year had no significant effects on the results and
financial position of the Group for the current and prior
years.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies.

The amendments have no effect on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the
consolidated financial statements. The management of
the Group has reviewed the disclosure of accounting
policy information and considered it is consistent with
the amendments.

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023

2 FESTHERE®

2.1 REE % ()

BEVBMEREREBEE202F G5 M
BMEMRNZ SETEOR— Bz £2ER
Bl o RMBAEEEHEAAFTERE
W2 el BT B B SRS R
AEBRAFERBAFENEERY
BRRWEBERTE -

FRAAF AT AEIEET BB B A

REFBCDERERUTEAEB AR
el IRIERT BB M IRE LR

BEAGER SR BRIKE
F15 (BRI A)

BAEEGTER SRHERT 2 EE
ERLACCHENS

BAEEGTER HE-RXFELN
E125% BERAEARH
SEHEN) ZIEFER IR

BAGTER BB B o —
F125% FoXERA
SEHEN) A

BB ERE 19 (1K5] ) 5t R
ZHEE

ZEBTERARREEAGHABEKE
o MIERBELTREFBR -

ZEERTHEEMBRRAEMIER K
FHECERAZINHEXE - AKEE
EEEEGRAEENGTHRRES A
RREBERTEREER] -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes
in accounting estimates.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that
it no longer applies to transactions that, on recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary
relief from accounting for deferred taxes arising from
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development’s Pillar Two model rules. The Amendments
also introduce targeted disclosure requirements to help
investors understand an entity’s exposure to income
taxes arising from the rules.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statement

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors of the Company
who make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

2.4.1 Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.4.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at period-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the consolidated
income statement on a net basis within “Other
gains/(losses), net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2 FESTHERE®

2.4 INEBRE (&)

242X B REE

INERX SRR HERARITERERE
RUNEER - BEERRXH RIZY
REZB|EASINEHENEEEE
RABEMELNINERD —RNE
SARALRFEEENGZAN
mRAE [ E e, (B5E) F57E ]
I

PSS AR BERT BRI IFE IR
RAEEAABEEANEXE
H - URRBEARNEERBE
BEE S Z DA AR EE KRR
BIEM—2n - flin - JEEBEE
REBE(WARAEBEFAEREE
Bt ABmEE) ME L ZRAE
BEh#RIB/AAEERRLEHE
M—&n MIFEEEE (WAR
AREEFELEEHHAEMEE
Wt s) WEN ZRAEHME
T Hh 25 SR

BEZREBERAE — T =55

113



114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

24.3 Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs, net of their residual value, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Shorter of estimated
useful lives or remaining
lease terms

Plant and machinery 5to 15 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in
"Qther gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents property
and plant under construction and is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction and acquisition and capitalised
borrowing costs. No provision for depreciation is
made on CIP until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred
to relevant categories of property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.

2.6 Investment property

Investment property is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Investment property is held
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both and is not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
investment property over the shorter of its estimated
useful life of 30 years or the related leasing period and
after taking into account of its estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

The asset’s residual value and useful life is reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “Other gains/(losses), net” in
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

Software

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Computer software is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment, if any. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value-in-use (“VIU"). For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

2.9 Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when
(i) the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows
from the financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers
the financial asset and either (a) the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
carried at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income; (iii) equity investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income; or (iv) measured
at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing
them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting
period, following the change in the business model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
contract assets, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables and cash on hand and banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost and contract assets to
which the impairment requirements apply in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed before, at each reporting date, the Group
measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an
amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the
expected life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due to an entity under the contract and the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the

financial instruments are grouped based on the past
due information or other credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that the
Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets
any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group); or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Irrespective
of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, except for which the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if:

(i) ithas alow risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the debtor to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

All financial assets, except for contract assets, trade and
bills receivables and other receivables, are determined to
have low credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For contract assets and trade and bills receivables, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL.
The Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and had established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group
has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof. The Group expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account
legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is
recognised in profit or loss.

2 FESTHERE®

210 SR E ERE (@)

BEEERENTHEE

BRLE—MHASHHEREENGBIR
KREREELETNZENEMHE - Z
TRMEENBEEERE 2REEHR
EERENERERRATEHNITER
g

(@) BETARBRABABRENR -
() BRAXD PHRRLHRBREMSE -

@ BERABBHALREFERAY
R EELANRRE - MERAR
HRETEZEENEY -

(d) FERAFRERESETEMYEE
e

@ EMEERPRMKIEZLERMIES

) MUREFNMBEXRE-IASHE
B HItRBRTHAREEERNE

EAEEREAEEMAINE SR EE
2HXMBOANESRER  BIAKHE
MEZEREE AREZBRRR/RIE
WEIR LIS 2 B B sH A BRI E -
REBFBER TS UM BT AEURE -
A REBEASEWEBIZRAERERF -
WMEZ S MEEDAEINITARRE
FRARR YHEEEBERTERERE
Soo EAERZKREPN IR HER o

BEZREBERAE — T =55

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade, bills
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment.

2.12 Inventories

The Group’s inventories comprise solely raw materials
which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair
value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings, lease liabilities
and loan from ultimate holding company. All financial
liabilities, are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
finance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

2.17.1 Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. The management of the Group
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

2.17.2 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

2.17.2 Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
income tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.18 Employee benefits

2.18.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

2.182 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statements of financial position
if the entity does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting period, regardless of when the
actual settlement is expected to occur.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

2.18.3 Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state or publicly
or privately managed pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefits
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.

2.184 Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amount for the goods sold or service rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activity.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customers and the payment by the
customers exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
statements of financial position as a contract asset or a
contract liability, depending on the relationship between
the Group’s performance and the customer’s payment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer. Incremental costs incurred
to obtain a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and
presented as assets and subsequently amortised when
the related revenue is recognised.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer
the promised goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been
met for the Group’s activity as described below:

Manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
services

Revenue from manufacturing of lace and provision of
dyeing services is recognised when the control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may transfer over time or at a point in time.
Control of the goods or services is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the asset.

Revenue recognised over time uses the input method

with reference to the costs incurred for the goods or
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Footwear

Revenue from trading of casual and sports footwear
is recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers, the customers have full discretion over
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customers’ acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customers, and either the
customers have accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

2.20 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2.21 Leases

The Group leases land for the manufacturing of lace
and provision of dyeing services. The consideration paid
for the lease is treated as a right-of-use asset, which
is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Lease land is
amortised over the remaining lease term using straight-
line method.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and the
corresponding liabilities at the date of which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index
or arate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of less than 12 months.
Low-value assets comprise assets with value below
RMBS5,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the periods in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors of
the Company, where appropriate.

2.23 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received, and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “Other income” on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
recognised.

2.24 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required, or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

Contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the holding
company of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a holding company of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
holding company of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
for the current financial reporting period, which the
Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current [
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants ™
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements [l

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture B!

t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025

Bl The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future
periods will have any material impact on the financial
performance and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1 Market risk

3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk

The majority of assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, United States dollar (“USD")
and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other than
RMB, which is the functional currency of the major
operating companies within the Group. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign currency
exposure.

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in USD and HKD.

At 31 December 2023, if USD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%) against the RMB
with all other variables held constant, loss before
income tax for the year then ended would have
been approximately RMB4,274,000 higher/lower
(2022: loss before income tax would have been
approximately RMB600,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
the translation of USD denominated deposits and
other receivables, other payables and accruals,
trade and bills receivables, trade payables and cash
and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, if HKD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%) against the
RMB with all other variables held constant, loss
before income tax for the year then ended would
have been approximately RMB1,693,000 higher/
lower (2022: loss before income tax would have
been approximately RMB1,990,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on the translation of HKD denominated
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, other payables and
accruals and cash and cash equivalents.

3.1.2 Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly attributable
to its cash at banks. Details of the Group’s cash
at banks have been disclosed in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on cash
at banks had been 1% (2022: 1%) higher/lower
with all variables held constant, loss before
income tax for the year then ended would have
been approximately RMB2,690,000 lower/higher
(2022: loss before income tax would have been
approximately RMB1,879,000 lower/higher),
mainly as a result of higher/lower of interest
income on the cash at banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash
at banks, contract assets, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables. The carrying amounts
of each financial asset represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 92.1% and
99.2% (2022: 18.7% and 18.4%) of the contract assets
was due from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers, respectively, and approximately
91.9% and 98.9% (2022: 46.9% and 46.1%) of
the total trade and bill receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit
terms are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound credit ratings
and the management of the Group does not expect any
loss from non-performance by these counterparties.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BKERERE®
(Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.2 EERMK (&)

Risk management (Continued)
(a) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial asset that is
subject to the ECL models:

° Contract assets, trade and bills receivables

° Other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all contract assets and trade and
bills receivables. The Group measures the ECL on a
combination of both individual and collective basis.

To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade and
bills receivables have grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract
assets relate to unbilled services and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for the contract assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECL on individual basis

Contract assets and trade and bills receivables with
known insolvencies are assessed individually for
loss allowance and are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. At 31 December
2023, the balance of loss allowance in respect of these
individually assessed receivables was approximately
RMB2,449,000 (2022: RMB2,841,000).

Measurement of ECL on collective basis

ECL are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer and
its ageing category, and applying the ECL rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The ECL rates are estimated on the basis of historical
credit losses experienced, adjusted to reflect the effects
of existing market conditions as well as forward—-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivable.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of ECL on collective basis (Continued)
The provision for loss allowances for contract assets and

trade and bills receivables at 31 December 2023 and
2022 are determined as follows:

3

R EE w)

3.2 EERK (#)
REAGFEFBREEERE (B)
MN2023F K 2022F 12 A3 BRAHNE

EME 5 EEFA LB B ENE
BRERTREE

1-3 months  Over 3 months Total
12388 3EANUL @t
31 December 2023 2023128310
Weighted average expected loss rate  ANEF T HifFE R 1.0% 28.7% 1.1%
Gross carrying amount of contract BRNEENE HRIFIER
assets and trade and bills receivables ~ EWZIEHAREE
(RMB'000) (AEETFT) 85,643 371 86,014
Provision for loss allowance (RMB'000)  sHREEEE (ARETT) 868 107 975
31 December 2022 202212 A31H
Weighted average expected loss rate B TEHIEIE R 0.6% 28.7% 45%
Gross carrying amount of contract BHEERE HREWTIER
assets and trade and bills receivables ~ ENZENBREE
(RMB'000) (AREF7) 11,110 1,809 12,919
Provision for loss allowance (RMB'000)  #HiEf5iERHE (AREFT) 64 520 584

When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried at amortised
cost include deposits and other receivables in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The loss
allowance of other financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured based on the 12-month ECL. The
12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results
from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime expected credit loss.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the management of
the Group considered the credit risk of deposits and
other receivables to be low as counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed
that the ECL for these other receivables were immaterial
under 12-month expected losses method. Therefore,
the loss allowance for these balances was immaterial
and no provision was recognised.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the shorter and longer term.

At 31 December 2023, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents amounting to approximately
RMB268,978,000 (2022: RMB187,910,000), that are
readily available for managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including orderly realisation of receivables that the
Group considers appropriate and adequate amount of
available financing including short-term borrowings are
also considered by the Group in its capital structuring.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances, committed credit lines
available and interest-bearing borrowings which enable
the Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

The table below analyses the non-derivative financial
liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the statement of
financial position date to the contractual maturity date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERRBERE@®
(Continued)
3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 3.3 RBESEK#E)
The amounts disclosed in the table were the contractual KAEENEEAGHRIRRERE
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the RAREEBRERINHNEEBE-

Group can be required to pay.

Total
Total  contractual ~ On demand
carrying  undiscounted or less

amount  cashflow than1year 1to2years 2to5years Over5years

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EHE
RER REfY

BEAE REREE  JME 1228 255 BBSE
AREFT  ARETR  AREFR ARETR  ARETR

At 31 December 2023 R2023%12831A
Trade payables SAENTE 108,793 108,793 108,793 - - -
Other payables and accruals (excluding acarued  E 4[58 R 3108

employee benefits, deposits received from (TRfE:EER

custorers and other tax payables) BEPRIMEER

EftERTRE) 17,238 18,395 15,930 65 262 2138
Interest-bearing borrowing HERH 3,440 34,491 34,491 - - -
Lease liabilties ek 3883 4,203 1,541 1,54 1,121 -
Loan from ultimate holding company SRERAEER 3411 3411 3411 - - -
166,765 169,293 164,166 1,606 1383 2,138

At 31 December 2022 R202%124310
Trade payables BHREME 10,096 10,096 10,0% - - -

Other payables and accruals (excluding acarved  E A (508 R 318
employee benefits, deposits received from (TR EER
custorners and other tax payables) ARPHB RS R
EftERTRE) 7,748 8,365 6,33 65 26 2203

17,844 18,961 16,431 65 262 2,203
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4 Capital management

3.5

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Fair value estimation

The Group did not have any financial assets or financial
liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial
position which is measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents; and the
Group's financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing borrowing,
lease liabilities and loan from ultimate holding company,
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less
than one year are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1

4.2

Loss allowance on receivables and
contract assets

The Group makes provision for loss allowance on
receivables and contract assets based on assumptions
about the risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the loss allowance
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The identification of impairment of receivables and
contract assets requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying value of receivables and contract assets and
provision for loss allowance on receivables and contract
assets recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipments, right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and any impairment losses.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgements and make estimations,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
VIU, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continuing use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

4.2

4.3

Impairment of property, plant and
equipments, right-of-use assets
(Continued)

The management of the Company determines the
estimated useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the relevant
assets of similar nature and functions. The depreciation
and amortisation expenses for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Revenue from contracts with customers

For manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
services, the Group creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have satisfied that the performance obligation
is satisfied over time. The Group recognises revenue
from manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
services contracts over time using the input method,
based on the actual direct costs incurred and the total
estimated costs on completion for the services contracts.
Total expected costs and their corresponding contract
revenue require estimations from the management of
the Group based on understanding of the performance
of the contract and the Group’s historical experience.
Due to the nature of the activity undertaken in the
manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing services
contracts, the date at which the activity is entered
into and the date at which the activity is completed
usually fall into different accounting periods. As a
result, the Group reviews and revises the estimates of
both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Where the actual contract revenue is less than expected
or actual contract costs are more than expected, a
provision for onerous contract may arise.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing of lace and
provision of dyeing services; and (ii) footwear business.

The CODM has been identified as the executive directors
of the Company. The CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The CODM has determined the operating segment
based on these reports. The Group has three reportable
operating segments being:

(i)  Manufacturing of lace — principally engaged in
manufacturing of lace based on customers’ orders for
lingerie and other products;

(i) Provision of dyeing services — principally engaged in
provision of dyeing services of lace and swimwear
fabrics based on customers’ orders; and

(iii)  Footwear — principally engaged in design, research and
development, sourcing, merchandising, quality control
and sales of casual and sports footwear.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of revenue and gross profit.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is presented as it is not regularly provided to the
CODM for review.

Wi & o w8 E
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Segment revenue by operating
segments

The segment information provided to the directors of

5 WHERDHER @)

B

(a) BEE 7 EE 2K 2 AU

AARREEAEENEE2023F K

the Company for the reportable segments for the years 202 12ANBILEFEENAZ2WMHD E
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows: MO EERINT
Provision of dyeing
Manufacturing of lace services Footwear Total
HERE RUPREE 37 h
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
0BF  2002F  20BF  2002F  20B3F 00F  W0BEF  200F

ARBTTE ARBTT ARBTR ARBTL ARSTR ARETL ARBTRT ARST

Segment revenue 7 il 2069 26762 53287 56108 243376 51285 317,353 134155
Segment results PEEE 1479 11 (1321 8223  296% 4,301 23,846 (3811)
Other segmental information: ~~ EX A PER
Depreciation of property, nx - BERIED

plant and equipment e 5,158 7,391 7,007 9,19 - - 12,165 16,585
Additions to non-current ERDADEER

segment assets = = 335 460 9,544 4,183 - 4,643 9,879
Write-down of inventories T E R 1,134 1,695 3 1370 - - 1,456 3,065
Impairment loss on property,  #1% * BE Rk fE

plant and equipment AEBE 3,130 - 4,25 - - - 7382 -
Research and development ~ FFEF %

expenditures - - 6,481 8,586 2,178 - 8,659 8,586
Commission and ReRFEE

handling charges - - - - 10,631 2,888 10,631 2,888

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers within HKFRS

(b) ZWEBERNEE D NWEBE
BREENEISHEATFEN

15 by the timing of revenue is as WE@moHFmh
follows:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
2023 2022 F
AR®T T ARBTT
Timing of revenue recognition Wit 25 T BR B FEJ
Over time — provision of services BE F A — 1R LR 73,977 82,870
At a point in time — sales of goods R ER R — iﬁ%%ﬁ oA 243,376 51,285
317,353 134,155
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Segment revenue by operating
geographical location

The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is
determined by the location of operation, is as follows:

5 WHERDHER @)

() REBEHBNERNT NS HK
m

AEBZWENE (EREEUEEE)
EoedEmT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 4

AR¥TT ARBTT

Mainland China and Hong Kong R A & BB

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from customers individually
contributing over 10% of the Group's total revenue
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is
as follows:

317,353 134,155

(d) TEFXF&EH

HE2023FE K202 12 A31HILEE
B3 E BB B A S B AU 10% LA /Y

ERPzWEMT
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 %

AR¥T T ARBTT

From footwear business segment HEEEDE
Customer A BEFA
Customer B EFB

* The corresponding customer did not contribute over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

N/AFE A * 51,285
220,161 -

* HE2023F12A31BLLFE - HER
FHAEEBKEHERMTRBI10% -

BEZREEERAE — T _=FFK
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e) Details of contract liabilities

5 WHERDHER @)

(e)

EHNEEHES
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 4

AR¥TT ARBTT

Contract liabilities (Note 24) EHaE (MiE24)

Notes:

() Contract liabilities represent advanced payments
received from the customers for services that have not
yet been transferred to the customers. The contract
liabilities fluctuated during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 due to fluctuation in sales orders with
advanced payments.

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, all
brought-forward contract liabilities at the beginning of
the financial reporting periods were fully recognised as
revenue.

(f) Unsatisfied performance obligations

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all performance
obligations not yet satisfied by the Group were from
contracts with original expected duration of less than
one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant
practical expedient under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied performance obligations
was not disclosed.

(g) Non-current assets by geographical
location

No geographical analysis on segment assets in provided

as substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets
were located in the Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/\\/T\

ELURE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # £ 2023 12 A31 HILFE

6

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses, net (reversal of)/provision

BREEEDHAX

FEASHERA  SHERDERX - TR -
(B GREMEERENEEBERR

for loss allowance on financial assets and contract assets FHERME  RERZENREBENREZ
and impairment loss on property, plant and equipment are DT -
analysed as follows:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
AR¥T ARBEF T
Raw materials and merchandise used JRIA R R 7 an B #E (BT EE19)

(Note 19) 242,584 72,543
Employee benefit expenses, including EERIAX (BREEME)

directors’ emoluments (Note 9) (BfFEE9) 36,449 32,403
Manpower service expenses (Note 9) ANERRG RS (M5E9) 1,229 1,548
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) & & E# 84 (Kizx16) 363 493
Utilities KEE 9,204 9,394
Depreciation of property, plant and YIE - R KR R R

equipment and right-of-use assets BERE (He14)

(Note 14) 15,357 17,395
Depreciation of investment property wEMFENE (FIsE15)

(Note 15) 13 27
Write-down of inventories (Note 19) FEMOR (H3E19) 1,456 3,065
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2B 5 BM
— Audit service —EF R 895 1,350
— Non-audit service —EEEH AR TS 492 352
Professional fees BEXEH 2,970 4,153
Other tax and surcharges H At B¢ 18 [ fft pn 2 921 926
Packaging expenses BPERX 703 874
Commission and handling charges MeEkFESE 10,631 2,888
Waste handling charges BEYREE 2,094 2,980
Net (reversal of)/provision for loss allowance  (#[El) /FHES B EE K

on financial assets and contract assets AHEEBBEREBFE (1) 782
Impairment loss on property, ME - MR NEEREEE

plant and equipment (Note 14) (MfzE14) 7.382 -
Others Hit 2,088 3,626
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HERA - HE RS HMAZ -

expenses, administrative expenses, net THAX - (BE) &2

(reversal of)/provision for loss allowance EREEREGHEESIE

on financial assets and contract assets and ~ BEEFBEME  BE K&

impairment loss on property, plant and RBRRERERRE

equipment 334,830 154,799

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, research and BTEE -
development expenditures of approximately RMB8,659,000
(2022: approximately RMB8,586,000) were included in the

respective amounts as disclosed above.

HZE2023F12A31BI-FE  HEEX

4 N R 8,659,000 7T (2022 4 -

BDARE

8,586,000 70) BT AL AT ERHIIARIENE -

BEZREBERAE — T =55
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

7 OTHER INCOME Ha A
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 4
ARET T AREF T
Government grants (Note) BT w B (M) 4,247 4,970
Others HAib 154 399
4,401 5,369

Note: Government grants are all income related and there exists no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
government grants.

BYAE - BRI Bh 2 P B U A KRR - B AT B A X
FHT B ARER G A Mk AEIR -

8 OTHER GAINS, NET H Y 22 7% 88

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 %
AR%T T ARETF T

Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - WERREN
plant and equipment &8 - )
Exchange differences EHZR 2,386 4,177
Others Hh 71 -
2,457 4,175

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND

9 BERFMAXRADERRS

MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES, X (BEEENE)
INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
AR% T AREBEF T
Wages and salaries IENHS 33,646 30,105
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  BK& Ak A — R E L ZGTE
(Note a) (Mt3ta) 2,555 2,197
Other staff welfares Hi B TEHA 248 101
Total employee benefit expenses EERMFZ 25
(including directors’ remunerations) (BEESH2) 36,449 32,403
Manpower service expenses (Note b) ANERRFR S (M3Eb) 1,229 1,548
37,678 33,951
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:
(@) Pension costs-defined contribution plans
The PRC

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC, the subsidiaries operating in the PRC contributes
to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees. For
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, depending
on the provinces of the employees’ registered residences
and their current region of work, the subsidiary contributed
certain percentages of the salaries of its employees and had
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
postretirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

Hong Kong

The Group participates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Pension
Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets
of the Pension Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for the Group'’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.

No contributions forfeited by employees leaving the scheme
were utilised to offset contributions during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil). At 31 December 2023, there were
no forfeited contributions (2022: nil) available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

9 BERFMAXRADERRS
X (BERESHE)
(4&)

GEE

RIRERRA— R E G E
HE

RRPEEERNRERRTE  RPEEE
W BAREAEEEMEREBMERG
B VEH MR - B £ 20234 K% 2022412 A 31
BLEE STEENBERFELHRERESR
AIfEiE  MBARERLEEEF A
FEALMENR BUEE—PEARZSE
HEFINRA S SRR B RBFEL BRI -
ZEBRREPMRIKFEBERFTRKESR
mEIRRSEMT -

=i

AEERBEARGELESTEG - HEE
BAEREE2EFRENRE S RKENG
B(RAEFE]) - EXREEEELAH S
MEEBDLFEREL IR EBHRFRE
BASFHENRNATNEEFZEBRAR
X RAREBEHENEEBUNAEENE
E BBUEENESRA AEEZEE
HEREFARKSHER2HEBNER E
AEEZEEIEEEHRRBIN RIEBRKE
FEZBRA HEBRZERA2BEREA
BER 25 ERMHTERETASHE -

HZE2023F12A31BLFE B E2023F
NANALEFE TEFEHAHRMASSNET
B WEY fE SROA S 3R (2022 6F ¢ 48 o B
202312 A31H » WHRUH# 2 (2022
F )] ARBD R RFE R B HEER -

BEZREBERAE — T =55
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  Manpower service expenses

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group entered into certain manpower service arrangements
with an external manpower service organisation in the PRC.
Under these arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower
requirements were fulfilled by this organisation at agreed
service fees whereas the human resources provided were
directly employed by the service organisation. The individuals
providing services to the Group did not have any employment
relationship with the Group.

(c)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include one director for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: one), whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments payable to the remaining four
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: four)
are as follows:

9 BERFMAXRADERRS

X (BREEEHE)
(#)

BieE - (48)

(b) ANEBERBRIBHX

HE20234F K2022F 12 A31HIEHE - K
EEE—RPREINIANERRE B L
ETANERRBEZHE - RIEEELHE - Z
BBZHERBERRES T AEBETAF
T MATRENANEFRHAZREEER
BEEZ -NASERHEBREMOATHAEE
WL RBRAR o

( HEERHHMAL

HE2023F12A31BLEFE AEBRA
BEFMALEE—RESE (202290 —4%)
Hifl& RS M BRENAEIC 250D
M e B 2202312 A31BIEFE > B
BIIUA AL (20224 - OR)BIE T ¢

Wages and salaries ITER¥®
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Rk & A — 7
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2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

2023 F 20224

AR®TT AREFT

2,778 1,718

A2 62 54
2,840 1,772




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND 9 EERABAXIRADERRS
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES, X (BREEHL)
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (#&)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) st : (48)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (© HEERSHFMALE)
The emoluments fell within the following band: Bl & EELWAT -
Number of individuals
A
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Emolument band B & %3
Not more than HKD 1,000,000 %1 1,000,000 7T 4 4

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the director or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

HZE2023F M 2022F 12 A31 BILFE » AEBH
FERTMESFSIARERFTHA TE RTINS
AINBEE MR DR SR S E AR R E -

10 FINANCE INCOME, NET

10 BEWAFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 & 2022 F
AR®T ARBET T
Finance income E5-L'ON
Interest income FMEWA 2,306 2,338
Finance costs L& R A
Unwinding of discount on other payables EL A FE 5 SR IE A9 BT IR 1B (12) (11)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBEMERE (62) -
Interest expenses on interest-bearing FFEERFERE
borrowing (278) -
(352) 11)
Finance income, net RE WA FE 1,954 2,327
BEZEREBFGRAT — - =FF#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI are exempted from corporate income tax of those
jurisdictions.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, Fujian
Deyun Technology Co., Ltd* (f@iEZ{=ERHZ AR A A)), the
Group's subsidiary in the PRC, has qualified for high and
new technology enterprises status since December 2022
with a valid period of 3 years and is therefore subject to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% during the valid period.

The State Taxation Administration of the PRC announced
in March 2021 that enterprises engaging in research and
development activities would be entitled to claim at maximum
200% of their research and development expenses as “Super
Deduction”. The directors of the Company consider the
eligibility of the PRC subsidiaries and recognise the additional
tax deduction for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profit tax rates by
the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong from the year
of assessment 2018/19 onwards, the first HKD2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HKD2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, one of
the Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong, was a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2
million of profits will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HKD2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

11 FiSBimx

BOBE A R BN AL R 2 S
BisEEHR o

EFREREMNABRE ISR INEEER
ERRHMZE R EEENDEMRSEN

HE2023F R2022F12A31BLFE - K
SENTRNBARBEEENEERAR
B202F N2 ABRAERERS ML E
W BRBAEIFT AR EREBMES
BEAMBHEIS% -

FEBRHBEEABR2021F385MH #HE
HEEZHHEERBERRBRZ200% 0
WEBARENR] - ARAEEEZEEF
EFffE R R &S - MERREIE 2023 F [ 2022
F12A31MALFENEIFHBEINR -

BREEFENBERHENMNESHMAL - A
018/19 R FER - AEREEEENE
200878 705 A #5342 8.25% Bt R FR L - M 200
EETTA L8 ER 512 16.5% B KR ©

HE2023F K202 12A31BLFE - K
SEEF—HEEHNBRARAAERERT
EHMAHNEE 820088 TEFBIR
8.25% Tt KR Fi » M 2008 78 7T A L 19 3% F
#5152 16.5% T R iR FR

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 FF
AR¥T ARBF T

Current tax BB 1R
The PRC corporate income tax — Bl FTIE 1,123 -
Hong Kong profits tax —BENEH 320 150
1,443 150
Deferred income tax (Note 27) EFEFTEH (FI7E27) 17) 14
Income tax expenses FRiS %t 2 1,426 164

*  For identification purpose only

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023

R EXe il



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 11 FiE%iE < @)
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
ARET T ARBETF T
Loss before income tax BREFS LA E 18 (8,665) (8,773)
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to EEWBARIEAN
the respective subsidiaries MEFEHNTIE (759) (1,399)
Tax effect of: ITHENHBEE
Income not subject tax HARBUA (447) (1,265)
Expense not deductible for tax purpose ATHORL B 2 774 1,853
Unrecognised temporary differences RERERFIEEZR 1,199 2,242
Tax loss not recognised (Note (a)) RUERTIAEE (M7 () 1,641 -
Super deductions from research and 2R B R R (H5E (b))
development expenditure (Note (b)) (982) (1,267)
Income tax expenses PSS TR X 1,426 164
Notes: MEE
(@) At 31 December 2023, the Group did not recognise deferred (@) M2023F12A3MH AEBEWTEFHEIEE
income tax assets of approximately RMB1,641,000 (2022: A AR 10,942,0007T (2022 5 : ) R
nil) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately RIEFTS T E EH AR 1,641,0007T (2022
RMB10,942,000 (2022: nil), which is subject to the agreement F ) WEAAUBRBSHERS  BrgE
by the relevant tax authority and could be carried forward to EIEEBIA -

offset future income.

(b)  According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated (b) WREBEFERRHGEBEMOEREERE
by the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises BORERBEEINCEAREETEFE
engaging in research and development activities are entitled JERTm I - % P AR A B35 A 2 89 200 %
to claim 200% of their research and development expenses RERNBASL -

incurred as tax deductible expenses when determining their
assessable profits for that year.

12 LOSS PER SHARE 12 BREE
The basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss REARBERANTES AEGEERMN
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted HZE2023FK2022F12A31BHIEFENE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years BITE MR NE T BGTE -

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AN R A A E(GF A EE
the Company (RMB’000) (AR FTT) (10,091) (8,937)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares = 2717 % 58I &9 h04E 19 &
in issue (thousands of shares) (F1&) 1,260,000 1,260,000
Basic and diluted loss per share FRERREEEE
(RMB cents) (ARES) (0.80) (0.71)

There were no differences between the basic and diluted loss AR E E2023F K2022F 12 A31BIEFEL &
per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares BITEIINEAHELRR  WERERNLEE
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2023 and ERImER o

2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

w3

13 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 and

2022 are set out below.

13 MtB A &

ANEBN2023FE K2022F12A31HHEE
M ARETIT -

Particulars of
issued share
Place of incorporation and Principal activities and capital/paid-up Percentage of effective interest
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity place of operation capital held/controlled by the Group
BRITRE/ r5E
WEARERE AMAUBEREATRER IEEBREEHE BRRERE BE/EHNEBRRAMN
2023 2022
023 F 2002F
Direct interests:
ERER
Deyun Investment Limited BVI, limited liability company Investment holding in BVI USD1 100% 100%
Deyun Investment Limited EBRAEE  BRLA EEBRUHSRELR 1%7
Circle Time Limited BVI, limited liability company Investment holding in BVI UsD1 100% 100%
Circle Time Limited RERLEE  BRAT ERBRTEERAER X
Indirect Interests:
BER
Deyun Holding (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100%
company
Deyun Holding (HK) Limited &% - AR AR EBRBRALR 18T
Fujian Deyun Consulting The PRC, limited liability company Investment holding in the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Services Co. Ltd.*
REEEXARBAERLR 8 BRAF EREREER AR 10,000,0007
Fujian Deyun Technology The PRC, limited liability company Manufacturing of lace and RMB98,670,000 100% 100%
Company Limited* provision of dyeing services
in the PRC
BREENBERHARAT B BRAF ETEIZETERRHAERY ARE 8,670,000
Hope Faith Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales, research and development, HKD1 100% 100%
company sourcing and merchandising of
shoes in Hong Kong
AHERRA BB ARLH EEAHE MRERE 1T
REREHER
Putian Yingchuang Trading The PRC, limited liability company  Sales, design, research and RMBO (Note) 100% 100%
Company Limited* development, sourcing, quality
control and merchandising of
shoes in the PRC
ERREBSERAA hE - BRAA ERHE Rt BRE NEEZ T (fiT)
g RE REEAR
RHER
Note: The Group is committed to inject the registered capital of MieE : AREEFRFGEN2029F6 A30H Ik ZAEA

RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 June 2029.

*  For identification purposes only

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the

reporting period.

L& A AR ¥ 2,000,000 7T ©

* {EHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 YK -BERRERERE

AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS BE
Plant and Office Motor ~ Construction Right-of-use
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles i progress  Sub-total assets Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT HEREE  HORE e REIE Nt EREEE &t
ARETT  ARETT ARETRT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December ~ EZ2022512831R1L
2022 Eg
Opening net carrying amount ~ EAIERE 2 28,030 116,228 1,161 2057 - 147 476 2,640 150,116
Additions AE 303 9,308 355 1,136 1,301 12,403 - 12,403
Depreciation (Note 6) & (fite) 2,380) (14,234) (459) (239) - (17,310) (85 (173%)
Disposals & - - ) - - 2) - 2)
Closing net carryingamount B REREFE 25,951 111,302 1,055 2,958 1,301 142,567 2,555 145,122
At 31 December 2022 RW2E12A31A
Cost WA 4,778 288,361 4,815 4,058 1,301 341313 4121 345,434
Acoumulated depreciation  Z3H7E (1682) (177059 G760 (1,100) - (198746) (1566 (200312
Net carrying amount SEFE 25,951 111,302 1,055 2,958 1,301 142,567 2,555 145122
Year ended 31 December ~ EZ2023512431R1L
2023 EE
Opening net carying amount ~~ ERAIERE B 25,951 111,302 1,055 2,958 1,301 142,567 2,555 145,122
Additions HE - 925 10 60 458 1,453 4183 5,636
Depreciation (Note 6) & (Wite) (2288)  (11,986) (299) (33) - (14,2892) (465  (15357)
Transfer from constructionin~~ EEEERTE
progress 659 - 1,004 - (1,663) - - -
Transfer from investrent property #8549
(Note 15) (K&t 15) 28 - - - - 28 - 28
Impaiment loss HERE - (7,382) - - - (1,382) - (7,382)
Exchange realignment ExfZ - - - - - - 53 53
Closing net camrying amount B RERE F(E 24,504 92,859 1,770 2,695 % 122,014 6,326 128,340
At 31 December 2023 RUBEF12A31A
Cost A 43,705 281,904 5,829 4118 9% 335,652 8,362 344,014
Accumulated depreciation Zitne (19111)  (189,045) (4,059) (1.423) - (213,638) (2,036)  (215,674)
Net carrying amount BEEE 24,594 92,859 1,770 2,695 9% 122,014 6,326 128,340

BEZREEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
depreciation expenses have been charged in cost of sales,
selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses

14 V¥ BERIERERE

E (1
HE2023F K2022F12A31MBILFE -
ERYEEHEERAE HEXDHA KT
KA MBROT :

as below:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
ARET T ARBETF T
Cost of sales SHE R AR 14,104 16,585
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HRAX 6 7
Administrative expenses THAX 1,247 803
15,357 17,395

In view of continuous drop in revenue in respect of the
manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing services (the
“Lace and Dyeing Business”) during the recent years, the
management of the Group identified the existence of an
impairment indication on the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of Lace and Dyeing Business (the
“Non-current Assets”). The management of the Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to assess the
recoverable amount of the Non-current Assets, which is
determined based on the VIU of the Lace and Dyeing Business
to which the Non-current Assets relate.

The management of the Group estimated the recoverable
amount of the Non-current Assets with reference to the VIU
calculation using cash flow projection of Lace and Dyeing
Business. The VIU calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the directors of
the Company covering a 5-year period. Cash flow beyond
the 5-year period has been extrapolated using a long-
term growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Based on the impairment review performed by the
management of the Group with reference to the VIU
calculation conducted by an independent professional
valuer, Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, the
recoverable amounts of Non-current Assets of approximately
RMB121,000,000 was lower than its carrying amount at
31 December 2023 and therefore an impairment loss of
approximately RMB7,382,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Key assumptions used in the VIU calculation are as follows:

14 V¥ BERIERFERE
BE @)

AEEREERERANIZEERNT

2023

2023 F

Budgeted average gross profit margin EETFHENE 9.3%
Average growth rate TR = 13.2%
Long-term growth rate REERE 2.2%
BRER K (BiAN) 14.5%

Discount rate (pre-tax)

The management of the Group determined the budgeted
average gross profit margin and average growth rate
based on past performance and the expectation of market
development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific market risks relating to the Lace and Dyeing Business.

Sensitivity of key assumptions

The management of the Group identified the following key
assumptions in which a material change on an individual
basis would cause any or additional impairment loss. Material
changes that individually cause additional impairment loss on

the identifiable assets:

AEEEEBRBBENEEREMHHER
MBAEEREFYEN KR FHEREEK -
FREMMBE IR E AR X RERT HIE
BERABREBABOFEDSER

B BR BB

AEEEREDHPIATHRMER ZER
ROERERZ S S GBI HEEINRE
B8 o BRI EHA A E E LR BEINRER
BREARE

2023

2023 F

Increase of

impairment

loss

A1 185 45 4 n

Change RMB’000

25 ARBT T

Budgeted average gross profit margin Decrease 1% 13,248
FEEFIYERN X WA 1%

Average growth rate Decrease 1% 47,449
FHEREK A 1%

Long-term growth rate Decrease 1% 4,778
RERERX WA 1%

Discount rate Increase 1% 8,412
BRIR & 1%

BEZREBERAE — T =55
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

14 Y% -BERRERERE

EE @

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 7
AR®T ARET T
Right-of-use assets EREEE

Land use right T3 A 2,472 2,555
Leased properties HEME 3,854 -
6,326 2,555
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
2023 F 2022 FF
AR%T T AREF T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEEREMRX

assets

Land use right b {5 A 82 85
Leased properties HEMZE 383 -
465 85

The Group leases various properties. Lease contracts are
typically with fixed periods of three years.

The lease contracts of leased properties contain termination
options. The option aim to provide flexibility for the Group
in managing the leased assets. Exercising the termination
option is normally unusual unless the Group could replace
the leased properties without significant cost or acquisition of
a new property. The Group seldom exercises option that was
not included in the lease liabilities. During the year ended 31
December 2023, all of lease contracts for leased properties
contain an termination option, in which the total lease
payment made amounted to approximately RMB416,000
(2022: Nil), representing the total cash outflows for lease
during the reporting period.

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be
used by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling
or pledging the underlying assets. The Group is also required
to keep those leased assets in a good state of repair and
return the leased assets in their original condition at the end
of the lease.
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SRIERERE HPBIMNMNAHEERIELY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group has no
commitment to lease contracts in relation to leased properties
that have not yet commenced.

At 31 December 2023, the Group was committed to short-
term leases or low-value asset leases of approximately
RMB161,000 (2022: RMB89,000).

ME BERREBERERE
BE @)

MR2023F R2022F 12 A31 0 » REE &
B ARRBNAEYEEBEENHEESHRIE -

MR2023F 128318 AEBEHEHBEE K
KEEEEHEMNAELY A AR 161,000
gL (2022 4% + AR¥89,0007T) °

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 REW=

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
AR¥T ARBF T
At 1 January ®M1A1H 281 308
Depreciation (Note 6) & (fizre) (13) 27)

Transfer to property, plant and EREYE  HERRE
equipment (Note 14) (MF5E14) (268) -
At 31 December K12 A31H - 281

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the management
of the Group determined to transfer the investment property
to be held as warehouse. Accordingly, the carrying amount
of approximately RMB268,000 has been reclassified from
investment property to property, plant and equipment
following the change of use.

At 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group's
investment property was approximately RMB1,270,000
respectively. These fair value was determined by the Directors
of the Company mainly with reference to a valuation
performed by an independent qualified professional valuer,
using the income capitalisation approach.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
rental income or direct operating expenses attributable to
investment property that generated rental income have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

HZE2023F12A3MBIFE AEEER
BAERREMEEAREE - Bt REME
AR 268000 THREMEC RN ARE
FREFDBEEME BELEE -

M2022F 128318 AKBEREMEZR
REBELAANREE,270,0007T ° ZERAE
BENARBEEFELEBUABEREER
BANE AMAE AR EITOGERER -

RE E2023F K202 12 A31 B IFEE
BMERSWANELRSWANKEDERE
HNEECERYREARERPER -
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
amortisation of approximately RMB7,000 and RMB114,000
has been charged in administrative expenses and
approximately RMB356,000 and RMB379,000 has been
charged in cost of sales, respectively.
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 B EE
Software
B4
RMB’000
AREFTT

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZFE2022512A31BLLEE
Opening net carrying amount AR T H B 1,236
Additions NE
Amortisation (Note 6) #5H (MisEe) (493)
Closing net carrying amount BREREDFE 743
At 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H
Cost D% 2,514
Accumulated amortisation R (1,771)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 743
Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023F 128310 LFE
Opening net carrying amount HABREHE 743
Additions NE 72
Amortisation (Note 6) #5E (M5E6) (363)
Closing net carrying amount HAREREFE 452
At 31 December 2023 7M2023%12A31H
Cost PR 7R 2,586
Accumulated amortisation REt# iy (2,134)
Net carrying amount BREFE 452

HE2023F K2022F 12 A31HILEFE - 5
RIAI A R ¥ 7,000 7T & A R ¥ 114,000 7T 2 8
$HE BT Z M - M4 A KR ¥ 356,000
TR AR 379,000 T2 B #HERANE
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e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

18

17 RERETHWEMTER

CATEGORY
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
AR®T ARBFT
Financial assets tWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost B AR 2 A E
Trade and bills receivables (Note 20) & 5 FE YR I K FE U Z 4% (3£ 20) 78,185 6,137
Deposits and other receivables & & E M ERRIE 418 37
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) RekBeEEY (MiE21) 268,978 187,910
347,581 194,084
Financial liabilities tHas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost g il N ok = b=
Trade payables (Note 28) B 5 M F0A (K51 28) 108,793 10,096
Other payables and acrruals HL M JE < 5RIB I FEET IR 17,238 7,748
Interest-bearing borrowing (Note 26) B (KI5E26) 33,440 -
Lease liabilities (Note 25) HEaEMFE25) 3,883 -
Loan from ultimate holding BRI AR B (HFE29)
company (Note 29) 3,411 -
166,765 17,844
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18 FATFIE - BRERHMEIW
RECEIVABLES H1g
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
AR¥T T AREF T
Current portion BNERE o
Prepayments to suppliers TE A 4 FE P IR 1,378 225
Other prepayments Hth T8 518 568 310
Other receivables H At & YR IE 89 2
Deposits Ze 233 35
Other tax receivables Hqth FE Y B 18 580 -
Amount due from a related company (Note) f& U B3 B A 51 2008 (Ff5) 96 -
2,944 572
Non-current portion JEENEA I o
Prepayments of acquisition of property, Wi - BB REENTEN
plant and equipment FKIE 121 25

Note: The amount due from a related company is unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand.

MERER -

ke AEMRBER D AR AL T B RA
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

18 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of
deposits and other receivables approximated their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits
and other receivables were denominated in the following

18 FENFE - BERHEMER

FIE (&)
MR2023F K2022F 128310 e RHEAM
EWFGENEAEEEQAAEERS

AEBPEMNFE - BRE REMERFIANRR
EENL T EHHE

currencies:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 4
ARET T ARETIT
RMB AR 2,547 305
HKD BT 518 212
usD ET - 80
3,065 597

19 INVENTORIES 19 &

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 %

AR¥T T ARBTT

Raw materials R R
Less: Allowance on inventories B FERE

Allowance on inventories amounting to approximately
RMB1,456,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statement and included in cost of sales for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB3,065,000).
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10,822 11,020
(4,521) (3,065)
6,301 7,955

HZE2023F12A3MBIEFEE - HARE
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e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

BREE EZRBWHER
EEH&%?E

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 4

AR¥TT ARETT

Contract assets BREE 6,906 6,226
Less: Loss allowance on contract assets B ANEEBERE (52) (28)
Contract assets, net BHBEEFTE 6,854 6,198
Trade receivables B 5 W ERIE 81,377 9,374
Bills receivables U E IR 180 160
Less: Loss allowance on trade receivables & : & 5 JE Uk 2k 18 B3 18 (& (3.372) (3,397)
Trade and bills receivables, net B HrINGRIE K EREE R 78,185 6,137

85,039 12,335

Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to consideration
for work completed but unbilled for its business. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional, which generally takes one to three
months. The balances of contract assets fluctuated from year-
to-year during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
as the Group provided varying amount of goods or services
that were unbilled before the year-ends.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of
contract assets, trade and bills receivables approximated their
fair values.

The Group grants credit up to 90 days (2022: up to 60 days)
upon issuance of invoice.

EHEEEASEREEBETKNERAR
EWFRB WA BT - &EFK A E
BHEE(—REH—E=MA)  AHNEES
BEEFRERRFE - AR AEBRERZA
FIiRftEVMIRENARZSE TR R
HZE2023F K2022F 12 A31HIEEEHA
HEEEBRIRTFE) -

20234 R2022 128310 8 & E -
"’%ﬂlﬁz RIE R EREENEEEEE AR
BEMRE

AEENHERZEREEEESRSE90H
(2022F : &xmZE60H) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the Group’s loss allowance on contract assets
are as follows:

20 BHEE EZERWFERE
EiE®)

AEBEANEEBRBENZESHIT

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

2023 F 20224

AR¥F T ARET T

At 1 January m1A1TH 28 28
Provision for loss allowance on BEHREE IR EIBRE

a collective basis 34 -

Reversal of loss allowance Bl BB E (10) -

At 31 December ®12A31H 52 28

Movements on the Group’s loss allowance on trade
receivables are as follows:

AEEEZRWFABRBEHEOEEHNT

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

2023 £ 2022 F

AR¥T T ARMEF T

At 1 January ®m1A1H 3,397 2,615
Provision for loss allowance on an AR R EEFHR A BB R

individual basis - 702
Provision for loss allowance on a LR EEGHRMEERE

collective basis 367 110

Reversal of loss allowance B ol EE A (392) (30)

At 31 December ®12A31H 3,372 3,397
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MIFRRMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables, based on invoice date, was as follows:

20 BHEE EZERWFERE
EiE®)

MR2023F K2022F 12 A310 - E S ERE
EREWEEREZAHNEEITOT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 4

AR¥TT ARETT

1 to 3 months 1Z231@A 78,737 4,884
Over 3 months 31E A E 2,820 4,650
81,557 9,534
Less: Loss allowance on trade receivables  J& @ B 5 J& U 5} 18 &5 18 B 8 (3.372) (3,397)
78,185 6,137

The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets, trade
and bills receivables were denominated in the following

AEBANEE BEZRUFARERER
MAREER T EEEHE

currencies:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 %
ARET T ARETIT
RMB AR 12,988 11,750
usD ESI 72,051 585
85,039 12,335

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2023
and 2022 was the carrying value of the receivables and
contract assets mentioned above. The Group did not hold any
collateral as security.

R2023F M2022F 12 A3 SESEEE
B A b SRl FEW B K A 4 EEMEREIE ©
AN E A ES A TR R e AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBESEEY

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
AR¥T T ARBEF T
Cash on hand FHEBES 15 10
Cash at banks RITRE 268,963 187,900
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEYD 268,978 187,910
Maximum exposure to credit risk FEERRHAEHA 268,963 187,900
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the RekBeSEMREERERERME R

purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: EATIER -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 F
AR T ARBFT
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeZEEY 268,978 187,910

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash

AEERe LIRS FEYNREENTIE

equivalents were denominated in the following currencies: BEETE -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 FF
ARBT T AREFTT
RMB AREE 135,168 129,972
usb ETT 87,409 13,028
HKD BT 46,401 44,910
268,978 187,910

Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximated
their fair values.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounting to approximately RMB192,740,000
and RMB184,374,000, respectively, were deposited with
the banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds out of
the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Government of the
PRC.
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 AR
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value value
R & E HE H{E
‘000 HK$'000 RMB’'000
F A& FET ARBTF T
Ordinary shares of BR0.01BTH
HK$0.01 each EBRBRAE
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2022, 20221418
31 December 2022, 20229124318~
1 January 2023 and 2023F1A1AR
31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 10,000,000 100,000 84,177
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value value
R & E HE H{E
‘000 HKD$'000 RMB’'000
F A& FHET ARBEF T
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHAR:
At 1 January 2022, 20221418
31 December 2022, 2022912 A318 »
1 January 2023 and 2023F1A1AR
31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 1,260,000 12,600 10,511

BEZREESRAA

ZE=FFHR
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

23 RESERVE

(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds from issuance of the Company’s shares over its
par value. Under the law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Articles of Association, it is distributable to
the Company’s shareholders provided that the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(b) Other reserves

Other reserves represent the combined share capital and
capital reserve of the companies comprising the Group,
after elimination of inter-company transactions and
balances at 31 December 2023 and 2022 in relation to
the reorganisation in prior years.

(c) Statutory reserve

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the profit
after income tax (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity
holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific
purposes. A PRC company is required to appropriate
an amount of 10% of statutory profits after income
tax to statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution of
its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may
discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum
of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall
only be used to make up for losses of the company, to
expand the company’s operations, or to increase the
capital of the company. In addition, a company may
make further contribution to the discretional surplus
reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with
resolutions of shareholders.

(d) Exchange reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of foreign
operations for consolidation to the presentation
currency.
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iR e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

24 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER BREE HHUENRER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS Jﬁﬁ—r,‘\
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 7
AR®T ARBTT
Current portion BIERER o
Payables for acquisition of property, BEWE  BFELERED
plant and equipment FERT IR 2,743 3,716
Other tax payables H e I8 - 2,350
Commission payables EREe 10,816 -
Other payables H e 5008 693 627
Accruals for auditors’ remuneration JRE 5 1% S5 A 37 B 909 1,592
Accruals for employee benefit expenses EEtEERAMAX 3,479 1,654
Accruals for professional fees [EErHEEEH 222 282
Other accruals H M ERTFRIE 482 106
Deposits received from customers BEEFWEMNES 533 1,330
19,877 11,657
Contract liabilities (Note 5(e)) SR EE (HFE56) 220 365
20,097 12,022
Non-current portion JEENHAER &
Other payables HoAth &~ R IE 1,373 1,425
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of the R2023F K2022F 12 A31H - KEEH At
Group's other payables and accruals approximated their fair FEH/TAIE MEGFREBEMNEOEREAAREE

values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract liabilities,
other payables and accruals were dominated in the following

BE

AEBEHNEHARE
TARHEERIA T EHEFHE -

H & 5 50 IR & B A K

currencies.
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 4
AR®T T AREFTT
RMB AR 8,644 10,622
usD ETT = 659
HKD BT 12,826 2,166
21,470 13,447
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AR A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

25 LEASE LIABILITIES

25 fHEAE

Minimum
lease payments

RERENHK

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 %

AR®TR AR®BTRT

Present value of minimum
lease payment

BREHENRZ
BiE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 %

AR¥TFRT ARBTT

Within one year —FR

In the second to E_FRERF
fifth years, inclusive (BEERME)

Less: Future finance charges B ARREE S

Present value of lease obligations A EET ZIE

Less: Amount due for settlement 33 : + =1 A W ZIE]
within 12 months (show under BEXRE (KRR
current liabilities) BETIIR)

Amount due for settlement after ~ + =18 A& 2| HEEFHE
12 months

At 31 December 2023, the weighed average effective interest
rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 5.4% per

annum.

26 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING

1,541 - 1,355 -
2,662 - 2,528 -
4,203 - 3,883 -
(320) - N/AFREHR N/A 7 F
3,883 - 3,883 -
(1,355) -

2,528 -

26 tEMER

MR2023F 128318 AEBHESEEHMN
BFEHEBRANEATF54% -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 2022 4

AR¥T T ARETT

Interest-bearing borrowing — unsecured 5T B {5 5k — £ K 1

— Within one year ——FR

At 31 December 2023, the unsecured interest-bearing

33,440 -

MR2023F12A31H EREAEEREE

borrowing is wholly repayable within six months since its Fa RN N ME A AEBEER  WRETEER

inception and arranged at fixed rate per annum of 8.0%. The
unsecured borrowing is borrowed from a financial institution

which is an independent third party.
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AR A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

27 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

27 EEFHEES

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

2023 F 20224

AR® T AREFTT

Deferred tax liabilities FIERTE & (& 532 549

The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the years

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

IFEEHEHNT :

Accelerated

ELEF BB ERE E2023F 82022412 A31H

Contracts tax
Deferred tax liabilities RERESE assets deprecitiaon Others Total
BHEE MERBINE Hit Fohy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBFT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2022 2022415818 @) (424) (107) (535)
Charge to the consolidated RERE Wam & R
income statement ©) 3) 8) (14)
At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 7) (427) (115) (549)
Credit to the consolidated FTAGRAE W ER
income statement 6 19 (8) 17
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H (1) (408) (123) (532)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for the tax loss

carried forwards to extent that the realisation of the related

tax benefit through future taxable profit is probable.

‘A -

BEREMAEEERRNABEGE  —EE
JE £ R] R B R R B R i A B3R AR R AR R
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

27

28

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. At the end of the
Reporting Period, the Group has the following tax losses
arising in the PRC that can be offset against future taxable
profits of the respective subsidiaries for a maximum of 5 years
from the year in which the tax loss was incurred:

27 EEHIEBEBERE @)

A A SO TROBI R JROR A SRR - 830 B e SRR
EMIBEE -NMEHR NEBBATH
BEEANHEER TARNKHEEENEBER
ARREERELEFEFG  RZEFHR
PR E AR T e A -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 2022 FF
AR% T AREFTT
Year of expiry B H F 5
2028 2028 4F 10,942 -

The Group had undistributed earnings of approximately
RMB122,484,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
RMB130,736,000), which, if paid out as dividends, would
be subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An assessable
temporary difference exists, but no deferred liability has been
recognised as the Company is able to control the timing of
distributions of dividends from the PRC subsidiaries and is not
expected to distribute these profits in the foreseeable future.

Dividends payable by a foreign invested enterprise in the
Mainland China to its foreign investors are subject to 10%
withholding tax, unless any foreign investor’s jurisdiction of
incorporation has a tax treaty with the Mainland China that
provides for a different withholding arrangements.

TRADE PAYABLES

R2023F12A31H - AEBHARDIKREF
45 NR¥122,484,0007C (2022 F : HHAR
# 130,736,000 7T) * 201 A I BIR - Yk &
ANEENFIIE - AR AR R A B D15 E
e AR DR SR - B8R ARET
FHRKE  FEAFHERNER  BIE
HERETEE -

WA B Rz INVE D EEN IR EERN10%
BB - BRIFEMINEIR E F AL 2 7]
EHEREPEAN A EEN ST ARG
A& RIS o

8 EZENFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 %
AR®T ARBTT

Trade payables EZEMARIE
To related parties JET T A T 8,341 -
To third parties ENTFE=F 100,452 10,096
108,793 10,096

The trade payables are interest free and with normal credit
terms up to 30 days (2022: up to 30 days).
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28 TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 28 B F B RE @
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of trade R2023F K2022F 12 A31H - EZEMNK
payables, based on invoice date, was as follows: BREZABANERRTHOT
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 FF

ARBT T ARETT

1 to 3 months 12318 A 107,210 6,279

Over 3 months 3ME A A 1,583 3,817

108,793 10,096

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were AEBE S ENRIBENEEDBERATNEE
denominated in the following currencies: 8

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’'000

2023 F 2022 5

AR¥T T AREBTT

RMB AR 35,447 10,096

usb o 73,346 -
108,793 10,096

29 LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING 29 RRERATER

COMPANY

The loan from ultimate holding company is unsecured, SEERARBERAEER  TFE AR

interest free, repayable on demand and denominated in EREE WAEBTIE - &RKRERATE

HKD. The carrying amount of the loan from ultimate holding HEOREBEBREAABEES -

company approximated its fair value.

30 DIVIDEND 30 RE
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company RATREE2023F 2022612 A31H1E
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. FEWRENHIETIRRE
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 GERERERNFE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) BRIMEHAIEREKEEEN

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023

tax to cash generated from operations: REHEK:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 5
AR®T ARET T
Loss before income tax MRETIS R AT E1E (8,665) (8,773)
Adjustments for: MU TEIBEL R
Interest income T e A (2,306) (2,338)
Interest expenses FERE 352 11
Depreciation of property, plant, and ME - BERREITE
equipment 14,892 17,310
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 465 85
Depreciation of investment property REMEITE 13 27
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEHE 363 493
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEE - BB &RED
and equipment 18 - 2
Net (reversal of)/provision for loss (B@) FHiRemBEER
allowance on financial assets and aHAEERBERE
contract assets FE 1) 782
Write-down of inventories FEMR 1,456 3,065
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - WERZRERE
equipment 518 7,382 -
13,951 10,664
Changes in working capital: HEEeH
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 EWGRIE R E R & (72,023) 11,788
Contract assets EHEE (680) 2,122
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - me Rk
receivables H th & YR IE (2,372) 1,033
Inventories & 198 (1,283)
Trade payables 2 5 FER A 98,697 (10,097)
Other payables and accruals Hqth P& A R IE K B FT R 8,168 532
Contract liabilities aHaE (145) (223)
Cash generated from operations KEEENRS 45,794 14,536
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % 2023F 12 A31 HILFE

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) In the consolidated statements of
cash flows, proceeds from disposal

31 MERERERMT @

(b) RZEBRERERP HEY
¥ BERRENFERES

of property, plant and equipment &
comprise:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
2023 F 2022 %
AR®T ARBETFTT
Net carrying amount disposed HEMEREFE - 2

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment &8

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment FRi§IE
(c) Major non-cash transactions

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following major non-cash transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
entered into lease arrangements in respect of leased
assets with a total capital value at the inception of
leases of approximately RMB4,183,000 (2022: nil).

HEWE - BERRED

HEME - BER&REDN

() EEHFRERF

BRERA ISR iR ENE
Boh REBBEUTEEHFRERH ¢

HE2023F 12831 ILEE - BiAAE
B MBELRY  2SHEZEEH
THERNBELY B AREA4183,0007T
(20224 : &) -

BEZREEERAE — T _=FFK
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The movements during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 in the Group’s liabilities arising from

31 MERERERMT @

(d HBEZBMENEBHK

HE2023F %2022F 12 A31 B 1L
E AEBEERRETHELENEEY

financing activities are as follows: mr
Non-cash changes
FRE%8
At Addition of At
1 January Net cash  property, plant Exchange Interest 31 December
2023 flow and equipment difference expenses 203
~E
RUBE ER T RUBE
118 RE&ERA ES EiZE HEBX 12A318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT  ARE®TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZABE
12A3NBLEE
Interest-bearing borrowing dEER - 33,440 - - - 33,440
Lease liabltes HERE - (416) 4,183 54 62 3883
Loan from ultimate holding FRERARER
company - 341 - - - 341
Total liabilities from financing activities REREARD
BESE - 36,435 4,183 54 6 40,734

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

33 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for at 31 December 2023 and

32 HAREE

R2023F 2022912 A31H » REE W &

ERERKAALE -

33 EAXRKIE

MR2023F %2022 12 A31BREETLQE K

2022 but not yet incurred is as follows: EENERAINT :
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 F
AR¥T R AR¥ETIT
Contracted but not provided for EEESIEIOE S 193 395

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B £ 2023F 12 A31 H L FE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, further
information of the related party transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below.

(a) Holding entity

The ultimate holding company and controlling
shareholder are disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the loan from
ultimate holding company is set out in Note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(b) Transaction with related parties

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions were
carried out with related parties during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, at terms mutually agreed

by both parties:

L XZ

BRGAUBRREMTIBENR S/ B
AN B E 2023 K 2022F 12 A31BILEE
B TR SNEZERFHINNT

(a) ZEREER

REZER QB RERBRRNGE B BHR
RMEVRE - RRER AR ERFT
HNE M MRMEE29 -

(b) HEBLRS

BGA PSRRI E M ATIREE I
HE2023F K2022F 12 A31 B ILHF
€ BRAIHNE S LR E A IEER
BITETATR S ¢

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 FF
Nature of transaction R AR¥T T ARET T
Related companies (Note (i) R 2 7] (B3 ()
(i) Office rental payments* WEZHPEAEHE*
(Notes (i) and (iv)) (BT () %% (iv) 598 86
(ii) Purchases of footwear products* (VR ERE®R*
(Notes (iij) and (iv)) (B2 (i) 2 (iv)) 34,847 -

BEZREBERAE — T =55
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) E2EAEE 5 X B (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The family members of the directors have control and/or
significant influence over the related companies.

(i) Lease payments were charged in accordance with
respective tenancy agreements.

(i) Purchases were charged in accordance with the
framework agreement.

(iv)  The above transactions were charged based on the
terms mutually agreed with the related parties and in the
ordinary and usual course of business.

* These related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(c) Key management compensation

Key management includes the executive directors of the
Company who have the responsibility for the planning,
directing, controlling and the execution of the activities
of the Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management is shown below:

34 A RS (&)

(b) EREAEE S X 5 ()

(c)

MEE

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ERENRBEBB QR AR R
FEREES -

MENRIZERBEE HEE -

BREBIRIER BB -

VA £ 32 5 TR BN 77 B4R B 3 A0 IR
Yoo SR E R REFBRETHET -

ZEB R 5 TMEK LR RIS+
ABRRENBER HRIFEMERS -

TEEEETM

IEEREREARSE R 2
RATARBEBNADANTES -
ENRENEEERBNHMFIRMT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 F 2022 4

ARBT AREBTT

Wages and salaries ITERF®
Discretionary bonus BB IEAT

Pension costs — defined contribution plan  BAR % K A — F & HKEE

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35 XAFHHBRRARRFHHES

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE )
COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company at 31 ARATEIFR2023F 12 A 31 BB SR RER
December 2023
2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
2023 F 2022 FF
Pt 5T AR®T ARBETF T

Assets BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries RWB m s 186,371 186,371
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TE I RRIA 242 257
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NEIE /S (b) 65,757 91,946
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEED 131 -

,,,,,,,,,, 66,130 92,203
Total assets EE#E 252,501 278,574
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of A2 7 #EH A EIGEE

the Company

Share capital AR 72N 22 10,511 10,511
Share premium I& 10 @ E 80,081 80,081
Reserves i @) 186,374 186,374
Accumulated losses RETE1E (a) (29,661) (25,875)
Total equity emgsE 247,305 251,091
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals FEEt IR 1,085 1,873
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A R FA (b) 700 25,610
Loan from ultimate holding company #x#%2 i% 2 B B 3% 29 3,411 -
Total liabilities =R F - 519 27,483
Total equity and liabilities ERREEER 252,501 278,574
The statement of financial position of the Company was ARG BERARELEET SN 202453
approved by the Board of directors on 28 March 2024 and A28 BH#AETIE - WHNUTATRAZE

was signed on its behalf by

Tsoi Wing Sing Tsoi Lam Ki
BRE B
Director Director
EF BF
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35 XAFHHBRRARRFHHES

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B
COMPANY (continued)
(a) Reserves movement of the Company (a) A FHEEE
Share Capital ~ Accumulated Total
premium reserve losses reserve
RRE ERfGE Rt EE “ER
(Note 23(a)) (Note)
(H5E23@)) k3]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARBTTR ARETL ARETTL ARETTL

At 1 January 2022 H2022%181A1 80,081 186,374 (28,249) 238,206
Profit for the year FRa - - 2,374 2,374
Total comprehensive income 2 U A% - - 2,374 2,374

At31December 2022 and 720225128318

1 January 2023 %2023F1A18 80,081 186,374 (25,875) 240,580
Loss for the year FAEE - - (3,786) (3,786)
Total comprehensive loss 2 EHRAE - - (3,786) (3,786)
At 31 December 2023 RW20235F12831H 80,081 186,374 (29,661) 236,794
Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the MisE: AARMERFEEEARARBBAFE

aggregated net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired MEAKEN B RN AR FEEE -
by the Company pursuant to the reorganisation in prior
years.
(b) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries (b) FEU FEATH B A BIFKIE
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, e FETHE AR AERR R
interest free and repayable on demand. TERERERER -
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 36 EEENRER

(i) Appointed on 31 October 2023

(i) Resigned on 31 October 2023

(i) Appointed on 30 September 2022

(iv)  Resigned on 30 September 2022

() 202310831 HEZT

(i) 2023510831 HEHT

(i) 7202249 A30BEZE(T

(iv) 7202249 A30H BT

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
The remuneration of each director is set out below: BEEFNHMEIIOT
Employer's
Allowances contribution
Discretionary benefits in to pension
Name of director ESpg Fees Salaries bonus kind scheme Total
BER  EIHEAS
ne i BERA BNEA SHEIRMR Eoh
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
For the year ended HZ2023%
31 December 2023 12A31ALEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Tsoi Wing Sing BEE 107 269 - - 3 379
Tsoi Lam Ki (Note i) S (f ) 18 83 12 - 3 116
Jian Xuegen (Note i) BER (MzEi) 45 969 - - 13 1,027
Larry Stuart Torchin Larry Stuart Torchin 107 - - - - 107
Lin Mingiang HEA - 97 - - - 97
Independent non-executive BUFHTEF
directors
Chan Hoi Shan gL 107 - - - - 107
Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin izl 107 - - - - 107
Chow Kit Ting BGE 107 - - - - 107
598 1,418 12 - 19 2,047
For the year ended HENE
31 December 2022 NANALEE
Executive directors HITEE
Tsoi Wing Sing (Note i &2 (i3 2% - - - - 2%
Jian Xuegen (Note i) BER (B 13 163 - - 3 179
Larry Stuart Torchin (Note i) Larry Stuart Torchin
(F st i) 2% - - - - 2%
Lin Bingzhong (Note iv) &8 (f5Ev) - 7 - - 11 83
Lin Mingiang R A - 97 - - - 97
Lin Chaowei (Note iv) e (firsEiv) - 72 - - 11 83
Lin Chaowen (Note iv) SR - 7 - - 1 83
Wei Cunzhuo (Note iv) BEN (W) - 7 - - - n
Lin Lili (Note iv) R (B i) - 45 - - 11 56
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Chan Hoi Shan (Note ii) BRIE L (B3t it) 2% - - - - 2%
Chiu Kwok Hung, Justin B (Fi3Tiin)

(Note i) 26 - - - - 26
Chow Kit Ting ARE 17 - - - - 17
Sheng Ziju (Note iv) ¥ (M) 90 - - - - )
Yip Koon Shing (Note iv) ER () 91 - - - - 91
Wong Chun Sek Edmund ELEGRT)

(Note iv) 91 - - - - 91

506 593 - - 47 1,146
Notes: M sE
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors
of the Company; nor are any payable.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by connected entities with such
directors

During the years 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors of the Company,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors of the Company.

(e) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Star Shine Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2023

36 EEREMNRER @

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

ESRAEMNRALLEF

HZE2023F K2022F 12 A31 B I
E BESERIESREAOMS R
KER RSB AREEERE
SR TN T 5RIE o

RERHAEEREMEAE=F
8 R

HZE2023F %2022 1283114
EoEREREEEREMAE=F
REARE-

EBUESE - Eﬁ%%%?ﬁ
m%.&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmg g5
TRANER EERKRHEAM
R WEF

HZE2023F K2022F 12 A31 B I
B BESBUARARES mEaHE
EEHEEREEGHRENTR AT
HANER  EBERREMI ST -

EENRG  ZHIASHFH
EXER

BERaMBmERABREEIN  HEST
VUARREERNETEHRXHEEEEE
REEMRFERLFAEREHEFER
BEARBEXBAERNEARS TR
B -
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